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( NOTICE )

Notice is hereby given that the 43" Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Ludhiana Stock and Capital
Limited will be held on 30" September, 2025, Tuesday at 04:15 P.M. at the registered office of the Company situated at
1*floor, LSE Building, Feroze Gandhi Market, Ludhiana (Pb.)-141 001 to transact the following businesses:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Toreceive, considerand adopt:-

a) The Audited Standalone Financial Statement of the Company for the financiai year ended 31* March, 2025
togetherwith the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and

b) The Audited Consclidated Financial Statement of the Company for the financlal year ended 31" March, 2025
and Reports ofAuditors therson,

2. Todeclare adividend on Equity Shares of the Company for the financial year ended 31" March, 2025.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sanjeev Gupta, Director (DIN:- 00412914) who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4. 'Toappoint a Director in place of Mr, Ashok Kumar, Director {DIN:- 01971376) who retires by rotation and does not
offer himselffor re-appointment.

' N
By order of the Board
of Ludhlana Steck and Capital Limited

Sdf-

Tribhawan Singh Thapar
Chalrperson

{DIN - 00494576}

Reglstered offce ¢
Feroze Gandhi Maskst, Ludhlana

CIN: US7120PB1881PLCO04696
PLACE : LUDHIANA Emait; se_cs@rediimaltcom
DATED : 30-08-2025 )
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IMPORTANT NOTES

1.

Ludhiana Stack and Capital Limited mzn

1A,

1B.

Amember entitied to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote
on aPoliinstead ofhimseif/ herself and the proxy need not be a member of the Campany.

The duly stamped, completed and signed instrument of proxies in order to be vaiid and effective must be deposited
at the registered office of the Company not iess than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. A Blank
Proxy form is enclosed with natice.

Aproxy seappointed shall not have any right ta speak at the meeting.

Aperson can act as a proxy on behaif of members nat exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more thanten
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. Proxies submitted on behalf of the body
corporates, must be supported by an appropriate resolutionfauthority, as appiicable, issued on behalf of the
appointing organization, Amember holding more than ten percent ofthe total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights may appoint a single persan as proxy and such person shaii not act as a proxy fcr any other person or
member. .

Every Carpcrate Member, who infends to send its authorized representative to attend the meeting, is requested to
send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution, pursuant to Section 113 of the Caompanies Act, 2013, autharizing
its representative to attend and vote at the Annual Generai Meeting.

The Explanatory Statement under section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is net requlred as the Notice dces not
contain any Special Business.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding maintained under Section 170 of
the Act and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are interested maintained under
Section 189 of the Act wili be avaiiable for inspection by the Members during the AGM. Members who wish to
inspect, may send theirrequest through an email atIse_cs@rediffmaii.cam up ta the date of AGM.

Tofili the vacant position{s) of the Director(s), ifany, members of the company may file nominations for the post{s) of
Director(s) along with fee of Rs. 1,00,000 by way of Cheque/DD {which shail be refunded if the person propased
gets elected as a director or gets mare than twenty-five per cent cf totai valid votes cast an such resolution) up to
15" September, 2025 {Monday), till 04:00 p.m., atthe Registered Cffice ofthe Company.

Pursuant to Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 10 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company's share and Transfer Baoks and the Registrar of Members will remain
closed from 27" September, 2025 (Saturday) to 30" September, 2025 (Tuesday) (both days inciusive).

The dividend on equity shares as recommended by the Board of Directors, if approved at the Annuai General
Meeting, will be pald to the members, whose names shall appear in Register of Members as on 26" Sepiember,
2025 {Friday) or Register of Beneficial Owners, maintained by the Depositories atthe close of 26" September, 2025
(Friday). The dividend wili be paid subject to deduction of income tax source (“TDS™), wherever applleable within a
periad of 30 days fram the date of declaration to the members.

Members hoiding shares in physicai form are requested to intimate or update changes if any, with the Company or
M/s. Beetal Financlal and Computer Services Private Limited, pertaining to their name, postai address, emaii
address, telephone/mobiie numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power of
attorney, bank detaiis such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank a/c no., MICR code, IFSC ccde etc. in
format annexed with Annual Report or request to demat shares. In case of demat shareholding update the same
withrespective DPs.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 139, 141,142 and other applicabie provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Audit and Auditcrs) Ruies, 2014 (including any statutory maodification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereoffor the time being in force), Mfs. SCV & Co. LLP (previously known as M/s. S.C. Vasudeva & Co.}, Chartered
Accountants (FRN: 00235N/N500089) were appointed/re-appointed as Statufory Auditors af the Company in
Annual Generai Meeting held on 21.09.2024 to hold the office for the period of 5 (five) yearsl.e. from the conclusion
of 42" Annual General Meeting (AGM) till the ccnclusion of 47" Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder, the
company has transferred ail unclaimed dividend, which remain unclalmed for a period of 7 years, declared for the
financial years 2009-10, 201011, 2011-12, 2014-15, 2015-16 2016-17 & 2017-18 to Investor Education &
Protection Fund {(IEFPF) estabiished by the Central Gavernment.

Section 124 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with ruies made thereunder provides that years or more shaii he
transferred by the company in the name of investor Education & aii shares in respect of which dividend has not




10.

.

12.
13.

14.

Ludhiana Stock and Capital Limited ||l 3 ll[

heen paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more shaii be transferred by the company in the name of
investor Education and Protection Fund. Further, section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that a
shareholder whose dividend amount/shares have been transferred fo the IEPF shail be entitled to claim refund
there from. Concerned membersfinvestors are advised to visit the webiink: hitp:fiwww.iepf.gov.in/IEPF/
corporates.html or contact the Company for lodging claim for refund of shares and / or dividend from the I[EPF
Authority (Web Form [EPF-5). In line with the IEPF Rules, the company would initiate steps for transfer of such
shares, ifany, toIEPF.

Members are requested to write ta the Company atleast 10 Days befare Annual General Meeting for abtaining any
information as regards to Accounts/ Queries on Annuai Report, so that the same could be compiied in advance.

For convenience of the members and for proper conduct of the meeting, entry to the piace of meeting will be
regulated by the attendance slip, which is annexed to the Notice. Members/Proxies/Authorised Representatives
should bring attendance siips, duly filled and signed for attending the meeting and handover the same at the
entrance of the venue of the meeting.

in case of joint holders, the member whose name appears as the first hoider or higher in the order of names as per
the Register of Members of the Cempany will be entitled to vote.

Aroute map showing directions to the venue ofthe 43" AGM is given at the end of this Notice as per the requirement
ofthe Secretarial Standard-2 on “General Meetings.” :

REQUEST TO SHAREHOLDERS:

All carrespondence regarding Shares of the Company should be addressed to the Company's Registrar and
Transfer Agent (RTA), M/s. Beetal Financtal and Computer Services Private Limited, Beetal House, 99, Madangir,
Behind Local Shopping Centre, Near Dada Harsukhdas Mandir, New Defhi 110 062 or e-mail at
bestalrta@uarnail.com or beetalsta@gmail.com.

Members who hold shares In the physical form and wish to make/ change nomination in respect to their
shareholding in the Company, as permitted under section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(1) of the
Companies (Share Capitai and Debentures) Ruies 2014, may submit the prescribed form 8H-13/ SH-14 to the
company.

‘The Securities and Exchange Board cf India (SEB!) has mandated the submission of Permanent Accaunt Number
(PAN) by every participant in Securities Market. Members halding shares in eiectronic form are, therefore,
requested to submit their Permanent Account Numbers to their Depository Participants with wham they are
maintaining their demat accounts. Members hoiding shares in physicai form can submit their Permanent Account
Numbers to the Company/ Registrar & Transfer Agents of the Company i.e. Beetal Financiai and Computer
Services Private Limited.

Further, pursuant to the Finance Act, 2020 onwards, dividend income is taxable in the hands of the Shareholders
and the Companyis required fo deduct tax atsource from dividend paid to Members at the prescribed rates. Hence,
Members are requested to submit seif-attested copies of their PAN Cards for TDS and other taxation purposes,

Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register/ update their e-maii
addresses for receiving all ccmmunications including Annual Repart, Notices, Circuiars etc. In respect of shares
heid in demat mode, e-mail addresses can be registered with depositary and members who hold shares in physical
form are requested to register their e-mail addresses with Beetal Financial and Computer Services Private Limited,
Registrar & Share TransferAgents of the Company.

Pursuantto the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Third Amendment Rules, 2018, every unlisted
public company is required to faciiitate dematerialisation of all its existing securities. The Company has been
registered with Central Depository Services (india) Limited (CDSL), The members can avail the Depasitory
Services of CDSL. The ISIN of the company is INES62H01024,

Members / Beneficial Owners are requested o quote their full names as per Company's record, Folio Nos. /BP and
Client 1D Ngs., as the case may be, in ali correspondence with the Company.

Members are requested fo quote their e-mail IDs and contact nas. for prompt repiies to their communicatians.

Mermbers who have notyet encashed their dividend warrants forfinancial year 2018-19 and onwards are requested
to make their claims to the Company without delay. The names of sharehclders, whose unpaidfuncliaimed dividend
have been pending and are piaced atcompany's website www.lse.co.in.

Electronlc capy of Annuai Repart for F.Y. 2024-25 is uploaded on the Company's website www.lse.co.in. Members
can also access tha financial statement of the Subsidiary Company i-e. L SC Securities Limited available at website

of the company.




ADDITIONAL IN#ORMAT]ON 6N DIRE(..‘-'I;'(SR‘éI':'.lNG APPO]NTED ! RE-APPOINfEEi AS‘VR‘EQUIRED

UNDER SECRETARIAL STANDARD ON GENERAL MEETINGS ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF
COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA, IN THE ORDER OF THE ITEMS MENTIONED IN THE NOTICE

Name of the Director Sanjeev Gupta

DIN 00412914

Date of Birth 29,06.1965

Age 60

Qualifications Graduate

Experience 33 yrs. In Capital Market

Terms and conditions of appointment or re-appointment

Non- Execulive

Remuneration last drawn (including
Sitling fees, 1f any)

Dafe of first appointment on the Board 26.09.2005

Shareholding in the company 10

Relationship with other Directars, Manager and other Key -

Managerial Personnel of the company

Number of Meetings of the Board attended during the year 7

Other Directorships 1. MAS Global Ltd.
{Under Liguidation)

2.Ludhiana Commodities Trading Services Lid.

PLAGE : LUDHIANA
DATED : 30-08-2025

By order of the Board
of Ludhlana Stock and Capltal Limitad

Sdr-

Tribhawan Slngh Thapar
Chalrperson

(DIN - 00434578)
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The Members,
Ludhlana Stock and Capital Limited
Ludhiana,

Your Directors present the 43®Annual Report of your company together with the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Flnancial

Statements and the Auditors® Report thereon,
Financial Yearare as under:

Financial Summary (Standalone}

The Company's financial performance for the year ended on 31*March, 2025 is summarized below:

for the Financial Year ended 31" March, 2025. The summarlzed financlal results for the

{All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
PARTICULARS March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Profit Before Depreciation, Interest, Tax, Exceptional & Extraordinary ltems 25.39 92.49
Depreciation {17.63). {20.48}
Exceptional tems - -
Interest - -
Profit Before Extraordinary items, Tax 7.76 72.01
Extraordinary llems 38.03 -
Profit Before Tax 45.79 72.01
Tax Expenses (2.02) {3.54}
Profit after tax 43.77 68.47
Add:- Balance brought forward from previous years 320.24 281.96
Balance Available for appropriations 364.00 350.43
Appropriations
a. Dividend on Equity Shares {14.80) (30.19)
b. Transfer to General Reserve -
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 349,20 320.24

Financial Summary (Consolidated)

Foliowing Consolldated Financial Summary represents those of Ludhiana Steek and Capital Limlted & its Subsldiary i.e.LSC Securities

Limited having CIN No. U67120PB2000PLC054428:

(All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
PARTICULARS March 31,2025 [ March 31, 2024
Profits Before Depreciation, Interest, Tax, Exceptional & Extraordinary 2245.46 1854.81
Items
Depreciation {39.80) (49.50)
Exceptional ltem - -
interest (1689.01) {1377.24)
Profit Before Extraordinary items, Tax & Minority Interest 516.65 427.37
Extraordinary items {Income) 38.03 -
Profit BeforeTax& Minority Interest 554.68 427,37
Tax Expenses (143.63) (104.27)
Profit after tax& before Minority Interest 411.05 323.10
Minority™s Interest (181.38) {126.58)
Profit after tax and Minority Interest 229.67 196.52
Add:- Transferred frorm Minority interest - -
Add:- Balance brought forward from previous years 428.49 262.16
Balance Available for appropriations 658,16 458.68
Appropriations
a. Dividend on Equity Shares {14.80) (30.19)
b. Transfer to General Reserve - -
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 643.36 428.49

s




Dividend & Reserves

The Board, In its meeting held an 30.08.2025 has recommended a dividend @ 250% i.e. Rs. 25/ per equity share of Rs. 10/~ each on pald
up share capital for the year ended 31" March, 2025. The proposal is subject to the approval of sharsholders at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting to be held an 30.09.2025, The fotal amount of dividend for the currentyearis Rs. 14.80 Lakhs.

The dividend, if approved at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, will be pald to those sharehclders, whose names shall appear in
Reglster of Members as on 26.09.2025 (Friday} or Register of Beneficial Owners, maintalned by the Depasitories at the clese of
26.09.2025 (Friday).

Buring the year underreview, the Board of Directors has decided not to transfer any amount fo General Reserve.

Resulfs of Operations and the State of Company's affairs

On standalone basls Total Revenue during the financial year 2024-25 reduced to Rs. 282.72 Lakhs as agalnst Rs. 314.01 Lakhs during
previous year. The profit before tax expenses reducedto Rs, 45.79 Lakhs againstRs. 72.01 Lakhs during previous year. Net Profit after
taxexpensesreduced fo Rs.43.77 LakhsagainstRs. 58.47 Lakhs during previous year,

On consolidaled basis for the financlal year 2024-25, your company recarded pre-tax profit of Rs. 554.68 Lakhs as against Rs. 427.37
Lakhsforthe financlal year 2023-24. The net profitaftertax s Rs, 229.67 Lakhs against previous year's profit of Rs. 196.52 Lakhs.

Presenf Business & Future Qutlook

As earlier reported, the company is pursulng Iis object of performing functions of a Helding Company by coordinating the policy and
administration of existing subsidlary apart from providing infrastructure and related services to its members and contributing fo the socisty
by providing training to the students of various streams.

The companyis providing the stock market related knowledge to the students of various institutions in its premises,

Continuous Steps are being taken for further reduction of expenses and containing of everheads. Simultaneously, new business avenues
are being explored and evaluated for the bettermeni ofthe Com pany.

The 218.495 kwp Roof-Top Solar Power Plant which was set up in the month of December, 2021, s constanty proving economy in semi
variable costs by reducing Power consumption.

Taxation matters

The Income Tax cases of the Company perialning to the Assessment Years 2001-02, 2003-04 and 2004-05, which were pending
ad]udication before the Hon'ble Punjab and Haryana High Court at Chandigarh, have been withdrawn by the Hon'ble High Court vide its
Order dated 08.01.2025, in view of Circular No. 9/2024 dated September 17, 2024, Issued by the Ministry of Finance, Department of
Revenue, Central Board of Direct Taxes.

Material Changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financlal position ofthe company

No material changes and commitments affecting the financia! position of the Company occurred between the end of financlal year to which
these financla! stalements relate and the date ofthis report.

issue of Equity Shares with differentiai rights

During the year under review, the company has notissued shares with differential rights.

Issue of Swaat Equity Shares

During the year under review, the company hasnotissued any sweat equity shares.

Employee Stock Options

The company has notgranted any stack option io its employee,

Buy back of equity shares

The Company has neither bought back any of its own shares nor has given any loanto the employess {including KMPs) of the Company for
the purchase of the Company shares.

Change in Nature of Business

During the period under review, there had been no change In the nature of business of the Company.
Capital Structure

The paid up Equity Share Capital as at March 31, 2025 stood at Rs. 5.92 Lacs consisfing of 59,200 equity shares of Rs. 10/~each. During
the period under review, there was no change in the Capltal Structure of the Company.

CreditRating of Securities
The Companyis not required to obtain the creditrating of its securities.
Transfers to the investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF)

Buring the financlal year 2024-25, pursuant to the provislons of Section 124{5} of the Companies Act, 2013 ("The Act”) read with the
Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund} Rules, 2016 (“The Rules”),the dividend for the
Financlal year 2017-18 amaounting to Rs. 99,200 was transferred to the Investor Education & Protection Fund "IEPFY on20.11.2024.
Details of shares/shareholders in respect of which dividend has not been claimed along with due dates for transfer of these unciaimed
dividends fo IEPF, are provided on our website at www.lse.co.in. The shareho!ders are requested to verify their records and claim their
dividends of all the preceding seven years, ¥ not claimed.

Detail of the sharehclders, whose unpaid /unclalmed dividends have already been iransferred to IEPF, has also been placed on
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Company's website www.lse.co.in.

Detail of Noda! Officer neminated pursuantto Rule 7{2A) of IEPF Rules, can be accessed atwww.lse.co.in,

In case the shares or unclaimed dividend have been transferred to IEPF, ihe shareholders can ciaim the same by making an application

direclly 1o |EPF Inthe prescribedWeb Form IEPF-5 under the |EPF Rules which is avallable on thewebslte of IEPF L.e. www.iepf.gov.in,

Directors & Key Managerial Personnel:

In accordance with the provisions of Seclion 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Article 73 of the Arlicles of Association of the

Company:

(i) M. Sanjeev Gupta (DIN:-00412914), director of the company refifing by rotation at the ensuing Annual Generai Meetlng and belng
efigible, offer himself for re-appeiniment.

{i) Mr. Ashok Kumar (DIN:-01971376), director of the company reliring by ratation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and he does
not offer himseiffor re-appointment.

Mr. Ved Parkash Gaur (DIN: 02439897) and Mr. Rajan Bedi (DIN: 00842613) were appointed as Professional Directors by Board of
Directors Witk effect from 23.12.2024 and 15.07.2025 respectively in accardance with the provisions of Articles of Associaticn of the
Company and they shall hold the office up to the date of ensuingAnnual General Meeting.

Deciaration of independent Directors

The provisions of Section 149 perlalning te ihe appoiniment of Independent Directors do notapply to our Company.

Board Meetings

During the financial year 2024-25, the Board of Directors met 8(Eight) times viz. on 09.04.2024, 18.05.2024, 13.07.2024, 17.08,.2024,
24.09.2024, 26.10,2024, 23.12.2024 and 20.02.2025,

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are not applicable to the Company
and hence the Gompany has not devised any policy refating to appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directars and other related matters as provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies
Act,2013.

Annual Evaluation of Board

The provislons of section 134(3)(p) relating to annual evaluation of Board, its Committees and of individual directors are not applicable to
company.

Informatlon pursuantto Rule § of The Companies {Appointmentand Remuneration of Managerial Personnei} Rules, 2014

The Company has notappointed any employea(s) in recelpt of remuneration exceeding the limits specified under Rule 5 (2) of Companiss
{Appainiment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

The statement showlng the names ofiop ten employees in terms of remuneratlon drawn pursuant to Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment
& Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 s attached as Annexure "B’ fo thisreport.

Director's Responsibility Statement

Pursuant fo Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134 (5) of the CompaniesAct, 2013, your Directors state that:

a. inthe preparalion of the annuai accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been foliowed with proper axpianation
relating to material depariures, if any;

b. Theyhave, in the selection of the accounting poilcies, consuited the Statutory Auditors and have applled them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and talr view of the state of affalrs of the
Company as at31" March, 2025 and oflts Profit/Loss for the yearended on that date;

¢, Theyhave taken properand sufficlentcare to the best of thelrknowledge and abliity for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and otherirregularities; and

d. Theyhave prepared the annual accounts forthe yearended 31%March, 2025 on a'going cancem' basis; and
They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all appficable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

Internal Financial Confrols

The Company has clear deiegation of authority along with set paiicles and procedures. These are reviewed periodically by the Board of
Directors. These measures heip In ensuring adequacy of Internal financial controis commensurate with the nature and scale of operations
ofthe Company.

Frauds reported by the Auditor

TheAudltors have notreported anyfraud to the Board undersub-section 12 of Section 143 ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

Subsidiary/Joint Ventures  Associate Companies

The Company has only one subsidiary named LSC Securities Limited (CIN: US7120PB2000PLC054428). No other company became or
ceased as subsidiary, joint venture or assoclae during the year.

Astatement containing salient features of financial statements of LSC Securities Limited in the prescribed format AOC-1, Is appended as
"Annexure A" to the Board's report. The statement provides the detail of performance and financial position of the Subsidiary.
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Performance of Subsidiary:

LSC Securities Limited is registered with SEBI as Stackbroker and as Trading Member at BSE Lid.(BSE), Natlonai Stock Exchange of
India Limited (NSE) and Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited (MSEI).During the year under review, the Company recorded a
business volume of Rs, 14662.05 Crores {Previous year Rs. 14831,81 Crores) and Rs. 3035.02 Crores (Previous year Rs, 4052.89
Crores} in Capltal Market Segment of the NSE and the BSE, respectively. if also recorded a business volume of Rs. 35083,51 Crores
{Previous year Rs. 25280.87 Crores) and Rs. 738.38 Crares (Previous year Rs, 27.62 Crores) in the Futures & Options Segment of the
NSE and BSE, respectively. The business velume In Currency Derivatives was Rs. 30,29 Crores (Previous year Rs, 976.20 Crores) in
NSE. The Company's reglstration in Currency Derivate segment has been surrendered with effectfrom 08.10.2024.

During the year under review, your Subsidiary Company has opened 1621 new accounts (previcus year 1436 accounts opened)in CDSL
and 94 accounts (previous year 123 accounts opened) In NSDL. It also opened 2009 Trading Accounts (previous year 1129 accounts
opened), -

Public Deposits

During the financial year underreview, the Company has notaccepted any deposit from the public within the meaning of secticn 73 & 74 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposils) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being In force) and as such, no amount on account of principal or inferest an deposits from public was
outstanding as on date of the Balance Sheet.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees orinvestmeants under section 186 ofthe Companies Act, 2013

During the periad under the review, neither any fresh loan nor any addition was made in an Inter-Corporate ican of Rs. 6 Crore given to
Subsidiary Company i.e. LSC Securities Limited for its principal business during the FY. 2022-23 afier obtaining the Shareholders
approval vide Special Resolution through Postal Bailot process under Section 185 & 186 ofthe Companies Act, 2023,

Particulars of Contracts orarrangements with related parties:

Alltransactions with related parties entered during the Financiai Year 2024-25 were on arm’s length basfs and were in the ordinary course
of business and were in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act. There were no ather materially significant related parly
transactions made by the Company with Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential
confilctwith the interesf of the Company at large except the already entered transactions on Am's Length basis pertaining to Commersial
Space to Mfs. LBC Securities Limited, Subsidiary Company. Hence such particulars have been given in prescribed Form AOC-2 appended
as"Annsxure C’ {othe Board's report.

With the approval of the Members in EGM held on 25.01.2025, a supplemental MOU dated 27.01.2025 {afteramendment in supplemental
MOU dated 15.06.2024) valid up to 31.03.2029 was entered with LSC Securities Limlited, Subsidfary Company for sharing a part of building
along with other infrastructure orfacflitles (in addition o already avaited) for use of principal business of the Company.

Related party disciosures as perAS-18 have been provided in Note—532 to the financlal statements.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company has not developed and Implemented any corporate Social Responsibility Initiatives as the provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are notappiicable upon the Company.

Conservation of energy, technology absorption and forelgn exchange earning & outgo:

inview of the nature of business activities of the Company, the information relating fo conservation of energy and technologyabsorption, as
required under Section 134 (3) (m) of the Act read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Ruies 2014, is not required fo be given. The
Company has, however, used informalion technology extensivelyin its operations.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo forthe period under review was as under: 1. Forelgn Exchange Earning: Nii 2. Outgo - Nif

Risk Management

The Board of Directors, from time fo time, reviews the risks faced by the company and the corresponding risk mitigation pfans deployed,
However, Company has notcome across any element of risk which may threaten the existence of the Company.

Disclosure of composition of Audit Committee and providing Vigii Mechanism

The provisions of Section 177 ofthe Companles Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies (Meelings of the Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company, Hence, disclosures pursuantto Section 177 (8) & (9) of the Campanies Act, 2013 are nof
reguired.

Significant and Material Orders

There are no significant and materlal orders passed by the Regulators or courts or tribunals impaceting the going concem status and
Company"s aperations in future.

Statutory Auditors

Pursuant to provisians of Section 139, 141, 142 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
{Auditand Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the ime being in force) Mfs. SCV &

Co. LLP (previously known as M/s. S.C. Vasudeva & Co.), Chartered Accountants (FRN: 00235N/MNS00089) were appointedfre-appointed
as Statutory Auditors of the Company in Annual General Meeling hald on 21.09.2024 to hald the office for the period of 5 (five) years i.e,

from the conclusion of 42 Annual General Meeting (AGM}{ifl the conclusion of 47" Annual General Meeting.

In aceordance with the Companles (Amendment)Act, 2017 enforced on 7° May, 2018 by the Minlstry of Corparate Affalrs, the appoiniment
- of Statufory Auditors is not required ta be ratified atevery Annual General Meeting.

The report given by Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements ofthe Company forms partofthisreport.
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Auditors’ Report
The Notes on financial statements referred to in the Auditors™ Repart are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments. The
Auditors” Repartdoes not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

Secretarial Auditor

The provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Secretarial Audit are notapplicable to your Company.

Compilance with Secretarial Standards

The cempany has complied with appiicable secretarial standards issued by "The institute of Companies Secretaries of India’.

Annual Return

in terms of amended Section 92(3} of the CompaniesAct, 2013, the contents of Anhual Return of the Company for the financial year 2024~
25in prescribed e-form MGT-7 is available on the website of the Company al the link: hitps:/ise.co.n/pdf/Annual_Retum_2024_25.pdf.

Consolidated Financlal Statement

The Consaiidated Financial Statement of the company and its subsidiary prepared In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and
applicable Accounting Standards along with relevant documents and the Auditors” Report forming part of this Annual Report. This
statement Is also avallable on the website of the Gompany and can be accessed at the website www.Ise.co.in. The financiai statement of
the Subsidiary Companyi.e. LSC Securitles Limited is also available atwebsite of the company.

CostRecords

The companyis not requirad to maintain cestrecords under Section 148 {1) ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013,

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

Mfs. Beeta! Financial & Computer Services Frivate Limited, Beetal House, 3" Floor, 99, Madangir, Behind Local Shopping Centre, Near
Dada Harsukh Das Mandir, New Deihi-110062 is the Registrar and TransferAgent of the Company.

Compllance of Provisions of Sexuai Harassment of Women atWorkplacs (Prevention, Prohibition and Redrassal)Act, 2013

The Company has in placo a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassmentin iine with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women
atthe Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressai) Act, 2042. Internal Compiaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints
recelved regarding sexuai harassment.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment compiaints during the year2024-25:
a) Noofcompiaints recelved: Nil

b) Necofcompiainis dispased of: N.A.

c) Noof cases pending more than 0 days: N.A.

Statementon compliance with the Maternity BenefitAct, 1961

The Company is In compilance with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, which ensures maternity benefits to women
employeesas per appiicable law.

During tbe period underreview, no instances arose wherein matemniiy benefils were availad by any woman employes ofthe Company.
CorporateInsolvency Resolution Process initiated under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC)
Therels no application made orproceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 during the financlai year2024-25.

Dutails of difference between valuation amount on one time settioment and valuation while availing loan from banks and
financiai institutions

During the period underreview, therewas noinstance of one-time setllementwith any Bank ar Financial institution.
Acknowledgment

The Board of Directars wishes to place on record its sincere gratitude fo all cur Stakehoiders viz. Govemment, Bankers, Business
Constituents and Shareholders for thelr continued and vaiuahie co-operation and support to the Company and lock forward to their
continued support and co-operation in future too.

Diractors also take this opportunity to express their deep appreciation for the devoted and sincere services rendered by the employees at
alileveis of the Company during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Diranturq
of Ludhlana Stock and Capltal Limitad

Sdf-

Telhhawan Singh Thapar

PLACE : LUDHIANA Chalrperson

L DATED : 30-08-2025 (BIN - 00484576}
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FORM AOC-1

Statement contalning saltent features of the financiai statement of subsidlaries/assoclate compantes/joint ventures
{Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section {3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014

Part "A" ; Subsidiaries

Sr. No. Rs. {in Lacs)
Number of Subsidiaries 1

CIN/any other registration number of subsidiary company U67120PB2000PLC0O54428
Name of the subsidiary LSC Securities Lid.*

Date since when subsidiary was acquired

Friday, 07-01-2000

Provisions pursuant to which the company has become a subsidiary

Section 2{87)(il}

Reporling peried far the subsidiary concemed, if different from the holding

. . ’ N.A
Company’s reparting period
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last of the relevant Financial year NA
in the case of foreign subsidiaries. "
Share capital 644.18
Reserves & surplus 2298.32
Total assets 32686.80
Total Liabilities 29744.30™
Investments 0.00
Turnover 3110,87***
Profit before taxation 517.23
Pravisicn for taxation (Nef) 141.53
Profit after taxation 375.70
Proposed Dividend*** 25,770+
% of sharehelding 51.71%
Number of the subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations Nil
Number of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or have ceased to be a subsidiary Nil

during the year

* Formerly known as L.8.E. Securities Ltd,
** Exciuding Share Capitai and Reserve & Sumplus
***Figures given are of tolai Revenue eamed

**** Final dividend fer F.Y. 2023-24 paid during the year. Further Board of Directors has Proposed the final dividend of Rs. 0,40/ per share

{4.00%) fer the FY. 2024-25 involving cash outflow of Rs.25.77 lacs

Part "B": Assoclate Companies and Jaint Ventures
NIL

PLACE : LUDHIANA
DATED : 30-08-2025

—

~
For and on hehalf of the Board of Diractors
of Ludhlana Stock and Capitai Limited

Tribhawan Singh Thapar
Chalrperson
(DIN - 00494578)

Sd-

.
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Annexure "B
Statement of Employees under Rules 5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Ruies, 2014

LA . Remuneration Experienca Date of Age
No. Name Designation {Rs) Qualification {Years) Commencement | ({Years) Last employment held
1 | Aful Chikersal General Manager|  442,666.00 | B.Sc. {(Non-Medical) 3 25002008 55 Neva Gamments
Oriental Textiie
2 | DesRaj Jr. Englneer 301,400,00 1.T.L. Dip. 4 01.00.1992 80 Pracessing Co, Pvi.
14d,
3 | Dhirender Negi 8r. Technician 262,33200 Under Matric H 03.02.1940 i First Employement
4 | RamPujan Electrician 256,332.00 Under Malre 3 01.04.1933 57 First Employement
5 | Gurmail Singh Puar | Sr.Technician 245,852.00 L.Ti. Dip, 36 (1.07.1996 57 NFL Bathinda
6 | faspal Singh AC, Operator |  245,088.00 m.op. | 3 01402018 5 A"?;;;;mes
7 | HarsimmanjeetSingh | Technician | - 244,260.00 Mam“g?’jzﬂfa&m 6 12.11.2018 40 Ansal Plaza
8 | Kafiash Singh $r, Elecldcian 235,824.00 BA&ILTL 33 20.06.2006 54 Aslan Lake Health Food
9 | Ranjest Singh Technician 209,388.00 Under Malsic 8 12.06.2017 49 Ansal Plaza
10 | Goldy Sharma Technician 201,888.00 BA 4 08.01.2021 37 Westem Mali
Notes:(1). None of the employees mentioned above is relative of any Director of the Company.
(2). None of the employees mentioned above Is holding any share in the Company.
/_
For and on bahalf of the Board of Dlrenlarsw

of Ludhlana Stock and Capltal Limlted

Sdl-

Tribhawan Singh Thapar

PLACE : LUDHIANA Chalrperson

DATED : 30-08-2025 {DIN - 00434576}
J
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‘DIRECTORS' REPORT umisiirey

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of sectlon 134 ofthe Actand Ruie 8(2) of the Companles {Accounts) Rules, 2014.
Form for disclosure of particuiars of contracts/arrangements entered info by the company with related parties referred to in sub
sectlon (1) of section 188 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of cenfracts or arrangements or transactlons not at Arm's jength basis.

Number of Contracts or arangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis Nil
Corporate identity number (CIN) N.A.
Name(s) of the related party N.A.
Nature of relationship _ N.A.
Nature of coniracts/ arrangements/ fransactions N.A.
Duration of the contracts / arrangements/ transactions N.A,
Sallent terms of the conlracts or arrangements or transactions inciuding actual / expected contractual N.A.
amount
Justification for entering into such confracts or arangements or transactions N.A.
Date of approval by the Board N.A.
Amount paid as advances, if any N.A.
Date on which the resclution was passed in generai mesting as required under first proviso to section 188 N.A.
8RN of MGT-14 N.A.
2. Defalls of material confracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis:
Number of Contracts or amangements or 1
fransactions not at arm's length basis
Corporate Identity nurnber (CIN) U67120PB2000PLC054428
Name(s) of the related party LSC Securilies Limited
Nature of relationship Subsidiary Company
Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ Lease Arrangement with subsidiary cornpany for use of Commercial Space
fransactions by subsidiary company for its principle business.
Duration of the contracts / arrangements/ 01.04.2024-31.03.2029
transactlons
Salient terms of the contracts or The Related Party Transaction perfains to providing space on lease to the
arrangements or transactions inciuding Subsidiary Company for the pumpose of canying on its principal
actual / expected contractual amount business. The transaction was undertaken in the Ordinary Course of
Business and on an Arm’s Lengih Basis. A Memorandumn of
Understanding (MOU) was executed with the Subsidiary Company for
providing such space, which has been amended from time to time in
accordance with the requirements of the Subsidiary Cornpany, after
obtaining the necessary approvals frem the shareholders.
Date(s) of approval by the Board 16.02.2021, 18.05.2024, 23.12,2024, 20.02.2025
Amount paid as advances, if any Nil
N
( For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

of Ludhlana Stock and Capital Limited

Sd/-
Tribhawan Singh Thapar
PLACE : LUDHIANA Chalrperscn
DATED : 30-08-2025 (DIN » I]M!MSTBU
e
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Tothe Members of

Ludhiana Stock and Capital Limited

Report on the Audit ofthe Standalone Financiai Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standaione financiai statements of Ludhiana Steck and Capltal Limited (the Company’}), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31" March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash flows for the year ended

and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information. (herelnafter referred to as “standalcne financlai statements”).

In our apinion and to the best of cur Infcrmation and according to the expianations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements glve the information required by the Gompanies Act, 2013 {*the Act") in the manner so required and give a frue and fair view in
conformity with the sccounting principles generally accepted in Indla, Including the Acccunting Standards prescribed under section 133 of
the Act, read with Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2021, of the slate of affairs of the Company as at 31" March 2025, and the
Profitand its cash flows for the yearended on that date.

Basls for Opinlon

We conducted the audit of Standalone financial statements in acccrdance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Qur respansibiliiies under those Standards are further described in the Auditer's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
standalone Financial Statements section of our repert, We are independent ofthe Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the institute of Chartered Accounlants of India tegather wiih the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone -
Financial statements underthe provisions ofthe Actand the Ruies made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these raquirements and the Code of Ethics. We beileve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor'’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors Is responslbie for the preparaticn of the other information. The other information comprises the
information inciuded in the Board's Report Including Annexures to Board's Repart, but dees notinclude the financial statements and cur
auditor's reportthereon.

The Beard's Raportis expected to make available to us after the date of Auditor's Report.

Our opinlon on the financial statements does not cover the other infarmation and we do not and will not express any form of assuranco
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes
avaliable and, in doing so, consider whether the other infarmation is materialiy inconsistent with the financlal statements or our knowledge
obtained during ourauditer otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors [s responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act”) with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash fiows of the Company in accordance with the acecunting principles generally accepted in india, including the
Acceunting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companles {Accounting Standard) Ruies, 2021. This respensibility
also Includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assels of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making Judgments and estimates thatare reasonable and prudent; and the design, Implementation and malntenance of adequate intemal
financial cantrols, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, reievant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
tofraud or esror.

in preparing the standatone financial statements, the Board of Directcrs is respansible for assessing the Company's abiiity to continue asa
going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the golng concern basis of accounting uniess the
Board of Directors eitherintends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative butto doso.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for oversesing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibllities for the Audit of the standalonefinancial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether the standalone financiali statements are free from material
misstatement, whether due tofraud orerror, and foissue an auditor’s reportthatincludes ouropinion, Reascnable assurance isahighievei
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit cenducted in accordance with ShAs will always detect a material misstatement when it

exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are ccnsidered material if, indlvidually orin the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expecled toinfiuence the economfo decisions of users taken on the basis of these standaionefinanciai statements.

As partofan auditin accordance with SAs, we exercise professicnal judgment and maintain professional sceplicism throughout the audit.
Wealso:

- Identify and assess ihe risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
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- INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficlent and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud Is higher than for ane
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omisstons, misrepresentations, or the override ofinternal
confrol.

Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
clreumstances. Under secticn 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are aliso responsible for expressing our apinion on whether the Company
has adequate internal financial controls system with reference to standalone financial statements in place and operating
effectiveness of such contrals.

Evaluate the appropriateness of acccunting policies used and the reasonableness of acccunting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the geing concem basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, wa are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial stalements or, If such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to confinue as a gaing coneern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial staterents, including the disciosures, and
whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transacticns and events in a manner that achieves fair
presantation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable
that the economio decisions of a reasonably knowledgeabls user of the Standaicne Financial Results may be infiuenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the resuits of our work; and (if) to
evaluate the effect cfany identified misstatements in the standalone financlal statements.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant auditfindings, including any significantdeficiencles ininternal control thatwe identify during our audit,

We aiso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with reievant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them aii relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

2.
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As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report} Order,2020 (“the Qrder”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms
of sub section (11} of section 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure A" a statement on the matters specifiedin paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Crder,

{A) Asrequired by section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report that,

@
(b}

(c}
(d)
(e)

(f)

(@

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of ouraudit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books except for matters stated in paragraph 2(B)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11{g) cf the
Companies (Accounting standards} ruies, 2021.

The Standaione Balance sheet, statement of profit and Loss and the statement of cash fiows dealt with by this Report are in
agreementwith the books cf account.

In our apinion, the aforesald standalone financlal statements compiy with the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014;

On the basis of the written representatfons received from the directors as on31°March 2025 taken on record by the Board of
directars, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31*Mareh 2025 from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section
164(2) ofthe Act.

The reservations relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in the paragraph
2(A)(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Actand paragraph 2(B)(vi) below on re porting under Rule 11(g) ofthe
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021.

With respect fo the adequacy of the intemnal financial centrols over financiai reporting of the Company and the opereting
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate reportin “Annexure B".Our report expresses an unmodified opinlenon the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Internalfinancial control with reference te standalone financial statements.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be inciuded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Ccmpanies

(Accounting Standards} Rulas, 2021, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations giventous:

As per Information and explanation given fo us, there is no pending litigations having impact on the financial pesitlon of the
Company.
The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which there were any material




foresesablelosses.

fli. There has been no delay in iransferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

iv.(I} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
Invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to orin any ofher
person orentity, including forelgn entitles ("intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermadiary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend cr invest in other persons or entitles idenfified In any manner
whatsoaver by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or pravide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(i) The management has represented that, to the best ofits knowledge and bellef, no funds have been recelved by the Company
from any person or enfity, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in wriling or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectiy, lend ar Invest In other persons or entities [dentified in any
mannerwhatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarentee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(il Based on such audit procedures thatwe considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (fi} contaln any material misstatement.

v. The final dividend pald during the yearin respect of the previous year ended 31" March, 2024 Is in accordance with section 123
of the Act, as applicable.

Asstated in Note No. 58 of the standaicne financlal staiements, the Board of Directors of the campany, have proposed dividend
for the year which is subject fo the approva of the members of company at the ensuing respective Annual Genera! Maeling.
Such dividend proposed is Inaccordancewith section 123 ofthe Act, as applicable.

vl. Based on our examination, which included test check and according to the information and explanatlons given {o us, the
accounting software used by the Company formaintaining its baaks of account forthe year ended 31 March, 2025 has a feature
of recording audit traf] (edit log) facility and the same has beenin operation from October, 2024 til the end of year.

Further, during our audit we did not come across any instance of the audilt trail feature being tampered with and the statutory
requirement of record retaining is not applicable as the company has started Itis editing log facility during the year.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report In accordance with the requlrements of section 197(16)
of the Act, as amended: In our opinian and to the best of our information and according to the expianatlons given to us, the
Company has not paid remuneration to its directors during the year. Therefore, the provisions of subsectfon (1 6) ofthe section

197 are notapplicable.
For 5CV & Co. LLP
Chatterad Accountants
F.R. No.: 000235N/N500085
Place: Ludhiana {Sanjiv Mohan)
Date: 30,08.2025 Partner
UDIN : 25086066BMKNQE7S00 M. No.D86066
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Annexure—"A"tothe Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatary Requirements’ section of our report fo the Members of Ludhiana
Stock and Capital Limited of even date)

inrespect ofthe Company’s Property, Plantand Equipmentand Intanglble Assets:

i

I

(a) (A}  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and sltuation of Property,

Plantand Equipment.
(B) TheCompany hasmaintained properrecords showing full particulars of intangibie assels.

{b) According to the information and explanation given to us, these Property, Plant and Equipment were physicaliy verified by the

Management during the year. No discrepancles were noticed on such verificatlon,

(c} Based on our examination of the registered saie deed / fransfer deed / ccnveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title

deeds of all the immavable properties disclosed in the standalone financial statements included under Property, Plant and
Equipment are held in the name of the Company as atthe baiance sheet date.

(d) The Company has notrevalued any of its Property, Piant and Equipmentand Intangible assets during the year.
{e) Based on the information and explanations glven to us, no praceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against

(=)

the Company as at March 31, 2025 for halding any benami property under the Benaml Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as
amended in 2016)and rules made thereunder.

According te the information and explanations given to us, the company has not held any inventory during the year. Hence
reporting under clause 3{i)(a} of the Orderis notapplicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, The Company has not been sanclioned working capital limits during the
year, from banks based on security of current assets. Hence reporting underclause 3(il)(b) of the Orderis nat applicabie.

According to the informaticn and explanations glven to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has not made investments in, provided guarantee or any security, or granted any foan or advances In nature of joans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, or any other parties during the year. However, the
company has granted unsecured loan to employees, in respect ofwhich the requisite Information s as beiow:

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations aiven to us, the Company has
provided loans as below:

Particulars {InRs))

Aggregate amount of loan given during the year 69,000

Balance outstanding as at 31st March, 2025 2,000

iv.

vi.

vii.
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@
()

(@
@

(e)

@

According to the information and explanations given o us and based on the audit procedures conducted by us, in our opinion, the
terms and conditions of the grant of loans are, prima facie, not prejudicial o the interest of the Company.

According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examinafion of the records of the Company, In
our opinian, the repayment of principai and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments /receipts have been
regular.

Accarding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Gompany,
there s no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of loans given.

According to the information and explanations glven to us and on the basis of our examinatlon of the records of the Company,
there is no loan granted fafling due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh ioans granted to setile the
averdue of existing loans given to same parties.

According to the informatian and explanations given to us and cn the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has not granted any loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or pericd of repayment,

According to the Information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of records of the Company, the
Company has not made any Investments, provided any loan, guarantee or security to the parties covered under the provisicns of
section 185and It has cemplied with section 186 of the Actwherever applicabie. Hence reporting under clause 3(jv) ofthe order s
notapplicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 {o 76 of the Actand the Rules framed theraunder.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to malntain cost records as prescribed
undersection 148(1) of the Companles Act, 2013. Hence reporting under clause 3 (vi) of the Order is notapplicable.

Inrespectof statutory dues:

According fo the Information and explanations given to us and the regords of the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
Company is generally regular in deposlting undisputed stafufory dues, Including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ Slate Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and
otherstatutory dues applicabie to It with the appropriate authorities.
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There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Gustom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues Inarrears as
atMarch 31, 2025 for a period of more than slx manthsfrom the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there are no statutory
dues referred to in sub-ciause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on accountofany dispute.
According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the company examined, there are no transactions
retating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disciosed as Income during the year in the {ax
assessments under the income TaxAct, 1961,

According fo the information and explanations glven to us, the Campany has not taken any ioans or other horrowings from any
lencler, Hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) ef the Orderis not appilcable.

According te the information and explanations given to us, the Company has net been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any govemment authority.

The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year
and hance, reporiing under ciause 3{ix)(c) of the Orderis not applicable.

According to the Information and explanations given fo us, the Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any
fender, Hence reporting under ciause 3{|x)(d) of the Crder is not applicable. :

On an overall examlnation of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person an account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary.

According to the information and explanations glven to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the Company has not
ralsed Joans during the year on the pledge of securities held inits subsidlary.

Hence reporting under ciause 3{ix) of the orderis notapplicable.

{b)
vili.
ix. (&)

()

{c)

(d)

(@)

M
x.  (a)

{b)
xi, (a)

()

(©)
Xik.
xili.
Xiv.
XV.
xvi. {(a)

o

{c)

()
xvil,
sviii.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any maney by way of initial public offer or
further pubilc offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordlngly, clause 3 {x}(a) of the Order Is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not made any preferential alictment or private piacement of shares or convertibie debentures (fully orparily or
optionaliy convertible) during the yearand hence reporiing under clause 3(x)(b) of the Qrderlis notapplicabie.

According fo the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of recerds, no {raud by the Company
and no fraud en the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

No reportunder sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Ferm ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companles {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the yearand upto the date of thisreport.
According 1o the infermation and expianations given o us, the whistle blower palicy is not applicable to the company. Hence
reporting under clause 3 (xl)(c) of the erder is notapplicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Hence reporting under clause
3{xii} ofthe Orderis not applicable.

In our opinion and accarding to the informatlen and axplanations given fo us and based on our examination of records of the
company, the transactions with refated partles are in cempilance with section 188 of the Companles Act, 2013 and provisions cf
section 177 are not applicable to the company. The details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 138 of The Companles Act, 2013 with regard to
internal audit system are not applicable tothe company. Hence reporting underclause 3(xiv) of the orderis natapplicable.
Accordng to Infarmation and explanations glven to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has not entered inte non-cash transactions with Directors or person connected with them, Accordingly, ciause 3(xv)of
the Orderis notapplicable to ihe Company. ]

Based an the Information and explanations given tous, in our opinlon, the Company is notrequlred to be reglstered under section
45-A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the order is not applicable fo the
Company.

Based on Information and explanation given to us, the company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or HousIng
Finance aclivilies without a vaiid Ceriificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of
indiaAct, 1934; and accardingly reporting under clause 3{xvi){b) of the Orderis notapplicable.

Based on Information and explanation given to us, the company is not a Core Investment Cempany (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India, and accardingly reporting under clause 3(xvi){c) of the Orderis notapplicable.

In our opinlon, there [s no core investment company within the Group {as defined In the Core investment Companles {Reserve
Bark) Directions, 2016)and accerdingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Orderis notapplicable.

The company has notincurred cash iosses in the financial year coverad by our audit and in the immediately preceding financlal
year.

There has bean no resignation ofthe statutory auditors of the Gompany during the year.
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Xix.

xxi.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of reaiisation of financial assets and payment of financial fiabilities,
ofher information accompanying the standalone financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management pians and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to belleve that any malerial unceriainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Companyis not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a pericd of
one year from the balance shest date. We, however, state fhat this Is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting Is based on the facts up to the dale of the audit repcrt and we nelfther give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all iabllities falling due within a pericd of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Companyas and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the provislons of section 135 of The Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable fo the company.

There have not been any qualifications cr adverse remarks by the auditor in the Companies (Auditer's report) Order of Iis
subsidiary company included in its consolidated financial statements.

Far SCV & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
F.R. No.: 000235N/N500089

Place: Ludhlana (Sanjiv Mohan)
Date: 30.08.2025 Partner

UDIN : 25086066BMKNQE7500 M. No.0BEOGE
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Annexure—*B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORE REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Raport on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to the members of Ludhiana
Stock and Capital Limited of even date}

Report on the internal Financial Controls Over Financlai Reporting under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Saction 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial control over financial reporting of Ludhiana Stock and Capital Limited ("the Company”) as of 31" March
2025 in conjunction with our audit of standalone financial statements of company for the year ended onthatdate.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company Board of Directors is respansible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal centrol over
financiai reporting criteria established by the Company censidering the essential components ofintemnai controi stated in the Guidance Note
on Audlt of Internal Financlal Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Charlered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controis that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficlent conduct of its business, inciuding adherence to respeclive company's policies, the safoguarding of its
assels, the prevention and detection of frauds and erors, the accuracy and completenass of the accounting recerds, and the fimely
preparation ofrellablefinancial information, as required under the Oompanies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Ourrespensibility is to express an opinicn on the intemai financlal controls over financial reporting with respect to these standalone financiai
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financlal Controis over
Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note"} issued by the institufe of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards enAuditing, prescribed
undersection 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financiai controls, both applicable to an audit
of Intemal Financial Controls and, both-issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to oblain reasonabie assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference fo this standalone financial statement were established and maintained and if
stch controis operated effectively in ail material respecis.

Ourauditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financialveporting
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controis over financial reporting Included obtaining an understanding of
intemal financiai controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaiuating the design
and operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
inciuding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud orerror.

We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a bas's for our audit opinion on the Company's
intemalfinancial controls overfinancial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Acompany's internal financial contrel over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabiiity of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial siatements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Acompany's internai financial control overfinanciaireporting
with reference to these standaione financial statements includes those poficies and procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenancs of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
ofthe company.

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactlons are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financlal statements in
accardance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that recaipts and expanditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

{3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautharized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets thatcould have amaterial effecton the standalone financiai statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financiai Reporting

Because of the Inherent limitations of intemai financiai controis over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements, inciuding the possibility of collusion or improper management override of contrals, material misslatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaiuation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the Intemnal financial control over financiai reporting with referance to these standalone financiai statements may
become inadequate because of changesin conditions, orthat the degree of compitance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Oplnion

In our epinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequale intemai financial controls system over financial reporiing and such internai financial controls overfinancial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the intemal control over financial reporting with reference to these financlal statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control slated in the Guldance Note on Audit of Intemal
Financlai Controis Over Financial Reporting issued by the Ins#itute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SCV & Co. LLP
Charterad Accountants
E.R. No.: 000235N/N500089

s Ludh
Elaatg?aﬂ.gs.i.’]ggsa {sanjiv Mohan)

. Partner
UPIN : 25086066BMKNQE7S00 M. No.086066
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(All amounts In ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwlise stated}

PARTICULARS Mote No. As at 31" March 2025 As at 31" March 2024
i EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders' Funds
a} Share capital 3 6,02 6.02
b} Reserves and surplus 4 2,244.04 2,216.07
2,250.06 2,221.08
2 Non-current fiabllifles
a) Long-term borrowings - -
b) Dafarred tax liability (Net} 5 10.87 10.49
c) Other long term liabllitles 6 266.97 243.47
d) Long-term provisions - -
277.84 253.96
3 Current liabilities
a) Short-term berrowings - -
b} Trade payables 7
i) Total outstanding dues of micro enlerprises - -
and small enterprises; and
1i) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 14.15 9.18
micro entarprise and small enterprise
c) Other current liabilitles 8 64.31 50.85
d) Short-term provisions g 0.89 0.79
79.35 60.81
TOTAL 2,607.25 2,535.85
li ASSETS
1 Non-current assets 10
a) Properly, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets
1} Property, Plant and Equipment 813.45 831.03
Ii) Intangible assets - -
813.45 831.03
b} Non-current investments 11 345.18 345.18
¢) Long-term loans and advances i2 83.50 €82.87
d) Other non-current assets 13 358.56 198.05
2 Current assots 1,600.68 - 2,067.13
a) Current investments 14 53.71 §3.71
b) Inventories - -
¢) Trade recelvables 15 6.54 6.05
d) Cash and cash equivalents 16(a) 33.82 26.72
e) Bank balances other than (d) above 16(b) 282.98 357.10
f} Shori-term loans and advances 17 600.18 0.92
g) Other current assels 18 28.33 34.23
1,006.57 478.73
TOTAL 2,607.25 2,535.85
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As por our soparats raport of aven data O Eanits Stook et Sama L™=
Chartered Acconntants
Firm Regn. No. D00235N/N5000B9 Sdi- Sdf- Sdl-
(Sanjlv Mohan) (Trlbhawanlil:f_l;nThapar) (Sanjesv Gupta) (Vlg?igs:m)

Partner

M. No. 0BBOGS

PLACE ; LUDHIANA

DATED : 30-08-2025

\_ UDIN : 25036066BMKNQET7S00

(DIN - 00484576)

sd/-

Piractor
(DIN - D0412814)

(DIN - 01964260)

Sdf-

{Atul Chikorsal)
General Manager
(PAN - AILPC4041L)

(Jaswinder Singh)
Managor Accounts

(PAN - BMTPS3113C) Yy
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{All amounts in T Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS Note No. Forthe year ended For the year ended
31" March 2025 31" March 2024

Income :
I Revenue from operations 19 113.88 106.57
it Income from investments and deposits 20 89.42 87.08
fi  Other inccme 21 79.42 120.35
iv.  Total Income (i+1i +1i} 282.72 314.01
v  Expenses:

Empioyee benefits expense 22 48.84 48.78

Depreciaticn and amoriization expense 17.63 20.48

Other expenses 23 208.49 171.74

Total expenses 274.96 242.00
vi  Profit before extraordinary items and tax (iv-v) 7.76 72.01
vil Extraordinary items .

- Unclalmed credit balances written back (Refer Note-28) 38.03 -
vill  Profit before tax (vi + vil) 45.79 72.01
ix Taxexpense

- Current Tax 1.25 4.41

- Income Tax relating to prior years 0.39 (2.53)

« Deferred Tax 0.38 1.66
x  Profit for the year (vill - [x } 43.77 68.47

Earnings per share { Face value of Rs. 10/- each ) (Refer note no. 33)

-Basic @) 9.68 115.66
- Diluted ®) 9.68 115.66

Ses accompanying notes to the financial statements

- ™
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
As por our separate raport of oven date of Ludhlana Stock and Gapital Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000235N/N500089 Sdi- Sd/- Sdi-
{Tribhawan Singb Thapar) (Sanjeev Gupta) (Vikas Batra)
(San]iv Mohan) Chairpersen Diractor Diractor
Partner (DIN - 00494576) {DIN - 00412914) {DIN - 01964260)
M. No. 086066
Sd/- Sdl-
PLACE : LUDHIANA (Atul Chikersal) {Jaswinder Singh}
DATED : 30-08-2025 General Manager Manager Accounis
L UDIN : 25086066BMKNQE7500 (PAN - AILPC4041L) {PAN - BMTF‘S3113C")_)
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'STANDALONE CASH FLOW. sTAf_:'Jf =M.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3TST MARCH 2025 e

(All amounts In ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

PARTICULARS For the yearended Fcrthe year ended
31" March 2025 31" March 2024

1. Cash Flow from Operating Actlvity

Profit before tax and after extraordinary Item 7.76 72.01

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 17.63 2048
Interest Income (81.09) (79.59)
Dividend Income (8.33) (7.49)
Allowances for doubtful debts 1.51 -
Galn on saie of Property, plant and equipment {1.10) -
Sundry balance/provision written back {0.15) (0.15)

Operating Profit Before Working Capital changes (63.77) 5.25

Changes in Working Capital :
Adjustments for (increase)/decrease In operating assats : .
Trads receivables (2.00) 3.83

Short Term Loans and Advances 0.74 (4.97)
Other current assets 4.90 -
*Leng Term loans and advances {1.00) {0.69)
Other non-current assels (7.05) (1.04}
Adjustments for increase/{decrease) in operating liabliities :
Trade Payables 4498 (0.51)
Short Term Provisions 0.10 0.08
Other Current Liabilities 14.16 {5.29}
Other long term liabilities 23.50 21.79
Cash Generated from Operations {25.42) (18.48)
Income fax pald {net) {1.29) (4.81)
Add : Extraordinary and Non recurring items (Refer Note 28) 38.03 -
Net Cash generated from Operating Activity (A) 11.33 13.57

2, Cash Flow From Investing Activity

Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 8.08 -
Interest received 7763 73.36
Dividend received 8.33 7.49
Payment for Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (7.01) {2.30)
Movement in bank deposlis other than cash and cash equivalents {75.88) (130.75)
Net Cash Generated / (used in} Investing Activity (B} 11.12 {51.69)
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PARTICULARS Far the year ended For the year ended
31" March 2025 31* March 2024

3, Cash Flow From Financing Activity

Dividend Paid (15.35) (31.68)
Net Cash {used In) Financing Activily (C} {15.35) {31.66)
4, Net Increase/ (Decrease} in Gash and Cash Equivalents (A)HB)+(C) 710 {69.68})
5. Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 26.72 96.40
8, Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (4}+{5} 33.82 26,72

Cash and Cash equivalents af the end of the year Comprises*

Cash on hand 0.38 0.36
Cheques presented but not cleared - . 1.68
Baiances with Banks:

-In current account 33.44 24,67

33.82 26.72

A % rt of dat For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
F:rpsaé\?lg (s:zpaLrEPa report ot aven cate of Ludhiana Stock and Capital Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000235N/N500089 Sd- Sdi- sdl-

(Tribhawan Singh Thapar) {Sanjeev Gupta) {Vikas Batra)
(Sanfiv Mehan) Chairperson Director Director
Partner (DIN - 00494576) (DIN - 00412914) (DIN - 01964260)
M. No. 086066

Sd/- Sdf-
PLACE : LUDHIANA (Atul Chikersal) (Jaswinder Singh)
DATED : 20-08-2025 General Manager Manager Accounts
L UDIN : 25086066BMKNQET500 {PAN - AILPCA041L) {(PAN - BMTPS3113C) )
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

a)

b)

c)

d)

e}

9
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a}
b)

c)

if)

1)

2

11}

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Ludhiana Stock and Capilal Limited is a pubfic company demiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956 on 17.10.1981. (At the time of incarporation, the name of the company was Ludhiana Stock Exchange Limited (“the
Company™)).

SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basls of preparation of Financlal Statements

The financial statements of the company have been prepared In accordance with Generally Accapted Accounting Principles in
India {Indian GAAP} to comply with the Accounting Standard (AS) specified under section 133 of the Companles Act, 2013. The
financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under historical cost convention.

The accounting palicies adopted in the preparation of the financiai statement are consistentwith those followed in previous year.
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, In conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles, requires the management
to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (Inciuding contingent liabilittes)as
of the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting pericd, Difference
between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known/materialize.

Revenue Recognition

Other Operating Revenue

Otheroperating revenueis recognized on accrual basis,

Interest

interestIncome s recognized on a time proportion basis considering the amount outstanding and the rate applicable,

Dividend

Dividend frominvestmentis recognized when right to receive paymentis established.

Fee from training and educatlon ceil

Feefrom training and educational celiis recognized on the accrual basis depending upon the tenure of the training batch.
insurance and GtherClalms

Insurance and other claims are recognized when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount to be realized and the
ultimate collection thereof.

Property, Plant and Equipment & Intanglble Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Piantand Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreclation. The Castofan item of tangible asseis comprises:

ilst pudrclaase price and any atiributable expenditure(directly or Indirectly) for bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use.

expenditure incurred on renovation/modernization of the existing property, plantand equipment s added to the book value of these
asifets where such renovationfmodemization Increases the future benefitfrom them beyond their previously assessed standard of
performance.

Subsequent expenditures relating to property, pfant and equipment is capitalized only when it Is probable that future economic
benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the ocost of the item can be measured reliabiy. Repairs and
maintenance costs are recognized in net profit In the statement of profit and foss when Incurred. The cost and refated accumulated
depreciation are ellminated from the financial statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resuitant gains orlosses are
recognized in the statement of profitand loss.

Intangible Assets

Intangibles assets are stated at cost less accumulated amount of amortization,

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property plant and equipment is provided on Written Down Value methed in accordance with and in the manner
specified in Schedule [ to the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreclation onassets costing Rs. 5000/- or below is charged @ 100% per annum on proportionate basis.

Amortization

Intangible assets are amortized on straightline method over their estimated useful life.

Employee Benefits: -

Short Term Employee Benefits:

Short Term Empioyee Benefits are recognized as an expense on an undiscounted basis in the statement of profit and loss of the
year in which the related service is rendered. This also includes leave encashment which are expected to occur within twelve
months afterthe end ofthe period in which empioyee renderthe related services.

Post-Employment Benefits:

Defined Contribution Plans:

ProvidentFund, Employee State Insurance Contribution (ESIC) are defined Contribution Plans:

The contribution to these Scheme Is made In accordance with the provislons of Employees Pravident Fund Act and Miscellaneous
lProvisionsAct, 1952 and Employee State Insurance Corporation and [s recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and
OS5,

Defined Benefit Plans:

Gratulty:
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The Group Gratuity Scheme managed by Life Insurance Carporation of India is a defined benefit plan. The llability for gratuily Is

provided based on actuarial valuation caried out by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date using projected unit

credit method. The present value of the company's obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation at the year end and the

f;zir lwalua of pian assels is reduced from the gross obllgations under the gratuity scheme to recognize the obligation on a net
asis.

Actuarial Gain orLoss:
Actuarial gain orlossis recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they occur.

h) Invastments
Long term investments are carrded at cosl, less provisions, if any, for diminution in value which is other than temporary. Current
investments are carried atlower of costand fair vaiue.

i) BorrowingCosts
Borrowing costs that are direclly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as
a part of cost of such asset. Qualifying asset is one that takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. Other
borrowing costs, ifany, are recognized as an expense in the period inwhich they are Incurred.

1 Impalrment of Assets
At each balance sheet date, an assessment is made whether any indication exists that an asset has been impaired. If any
indication exists, an impaimment ioss i.e. the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount s
provided inthe boaks of account.

k}  AccountingforTaxes onlncome
The accounting treatment followed for taxes an income is to provide for Current Tax and Deferred Tax. Current tax Is the
aggregate amount of income tax determined fo be payable in respect of taxable income for a period in accordance with the
provislons of the Income TaxAct, 1961.

Deferred tax s the tax effect of timing difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and
are capabie of reversal in ene or more subsequent period. Deferred tax is measured using tax rate and tax laws enacted or
subsequently enacted as atreporting date.

)] Earnings pershare
Basio eamings per share are computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the pericd atiributable to equity sharehalders by the
welghted average number of equities shares outstanding during the period.
For calcuiating diluted eamings per share, the net profit orioss for the period attributable fo equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares cutstanding during the period and welghted average number of equity shares which would be Issued
on the conversion of ail dilutive potentiai equity shares into equity shares.

m) Leases
Company as alessor
Leases In which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are ciasslfied as
operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognized on a systemalti¢basis overthe term of the refevantlease.

n) Cashflowstatement
The cash flow statement has been prepared using the indirect method in accardance with the Accounting Standard (AS) -3
*Cash fiow statements” prescribed in Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021.

o) Cashandcashequivalent
Cash comprises of cash on hand and demand deposit with banks other than under lien and cash equivalents are short term,
highly liquid investment that are readily convertible into known amaunt of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of
changeinvalue.

p) Provislonsand ContingentLiablitles

i) Provisionis recognized {forllabiliies that can be measured by using a substantiai degree of estimation}when:
a) the company hasa presentabligation because of a pastevent;
b) a probable outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits Is expected to settle the obllgation; and
o) the amountofthe obligation can be refiably estimated
fi} Contingentllabliityis disclosedincasethereis:

a) (i) possible obligation that arises from past events and existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
accurrence of one ormore uncerain fulure events not wholly within the oontrol of the enterprise; or

(i) areiiable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannotbe made.
b) apresentobligationarising from past events butis not recognized
{0 whenitis not probable thatan outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the abligation; or
() areliable estimate of the amount ofthe cbllgation cannotbe made,
g) OCperatingCycles:
Based on the nature of activitles of the company and the normal ime between acquisition of assets and their realization In cashor
cash equivalents, the company has determined its operaling cycte as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and
liabilties as current and noncurrent.
r}  Material Events:

Material events occuring after the balance sheet date are taken into cognizance in accordance with the principles iaid down in
AS4“Cantingencies and events occurring after the balance sheet date.
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- NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounis In ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
3 Share capltal

Partlculars As at 31" March 2025 As at 31" March 2024
Number Amount Number Amount

Authorlsed :

Equity shares of Rs.10/- each (par value) 5,000,000 500,00 5,000,000 500.00

Total 5,000,000 500,00 5,000,000 500.00

Issued :

Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 70,000 7.00 70,000 7.00
Total 70,000 7.00 70,000 7.00
Subscribed :

Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 60,200 6.02 60,200 6.02
Total 60,200 6.02 60,200 6.02
Paidup:

Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 60,200 6.02 60,200 6.02

Less ; Ferfeited 1,000 equity shares of Rs.10/~each 1,000 0.10 1,000 010

£9,200 5.92 59,200 5.92

Add : Forfeited shares { Amount originally

paid up) 0.10 .10
Total 59,200 6.02 §9,200 6.02

a. Reconclilation of the number of shares at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity shares As at 31" March 2025 As at 31" March 2024
Number Number

At the beginning of the reporting period §9,200 58,200

Add: Issued during the period - -

OQutstanding at the end of the reporting period 59,200 59,200

b. Rights, preferences and restrictions attachedto equity shares
The company has one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par vaiue of Rs. 10/~ each. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to ane vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of directors Is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ensulng annual general meeting and entitlernent to dividend to an equity shareholder shall arise after such approval except in case of
interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the hoiders of equity shares will be entitied to recelva any of the remalning assets of the
company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proporiion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholder.

Dividend

The final dividend on shares is recorded as a llability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividend are recorded as
aliability on date of Declaration by the Company's Board of Directors.

During the year ended 31st March 2025, the Company has Incuired net cash cutflow of ¥14.06 Lakhs towards the final dividend of
¥14.80 Lakhs for Financial Year 2023-24. The Board of directors in the meeting recomended a final dividend of Rs. 25 per share for the
financial year ended March 2025.

The payment in subject to the approval of shareholder in the AGM of the Company, if approved would result in net cash outflow of T
14.80 Lakhs.

Companyis required to pay dividend after daducting applicable withholding Income tax.
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NOTES FORMING PART:OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{(All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwlse statad)
c. Detall of Shares held by holding companyf ultimate holding company their subsidiaries and associates.

There is no holding or uliimate holding company of the company.

Details of shares held by sach shareholder holding more than 5% shares:  Nil

e. Aggregate numberand class of shares alloted (a) as fully paid up pursuantto contract{s) without payment belng recelved
In cash, {b) as fully paid up by way of bonus shares and {c) aggregate number and ¢lass of shares bought back durlng the
period of five years Inmediately preceding the balance sheet date

No shares have been allotted pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received In cash and alsono shares have been allotied
asfuily paid-up by way of bonus
Shares and no shares have been boughtback during the pericd offive years Immediately preceding the balance sheet date.

f. Details of Shareholdings by the Promoters of the Company

Name As at 31*March, 2025 As at 31" March, 2024 % change
Nao of % of Total
No of Shares % of Total shares Shares shares
Sat Pal Kanwar 240.00 0.41% 240.00 0.41% 0.00%
Subash Chander Jain 120.00 0.20% 120.00 0.20% 0.00%
Total 360.00 0.61% 360.00 0.61% 0.00%
Name As at 31" March, 2024 As at st March, 2023 % change
Nao of % of Tatal
No of Shares % of Tetal shares Shares shares
Sat Pal Kanwar 240.00 0.41% 240.00 041% 0.00%
Subash Chander Jain 120.00 0.20% 120.00 0.20% (.00%
Total 360.00 0.61% 360.00 0.61% 0.00%

Note: Subscribers to memorandum of asseciation (MOA) have been considered as promoters of the company.

4. Reserves and surplus

Parflculars As at 31" March 2025 As at 31" March 2024
Capital reserve
22 1,527.22
Balanco as per last financial statements 1527 el
1,527.22 1,527.22
Other reserves :
General reserve
Balance as per last financial statements 367.61 367.61
367.61 367.61
Surplus i.e. balance in statement of profit and loss
Balance as per the last financlal statements 320.24 281.96
Add : Profit for the year transferred from statement of profit and loss 43.77 68.47
364,00 350.43
Less : Appropriations :
Dividend Paid (Financial Year 2023-24) ’ 14.80 30.19
Closing Balance 349.20 320.24
Total 2,244.04 2,215.07

5. Defarred tax llabilities
Particulars As at 31" March 2025 As at 31" March 2024
Deferred tax [fabllity

Impact of difference between book balance and tax baiance
of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note no. 38)
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" NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{All amounts In ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwlse stated)

6. Other long-term liabilitias

Particulars

As at 31" March 2025

As at 31" March 2024

Others :
Retention meney
Security from members*
Security Trading Right

34.35
155.62
77.00

266.97

3435
153.12
56.00

243.47

* Security racelved from membars in respect of services rendered by company and for holding frading rights have been freated as

long term and shown accordingly.

7. Trade payahies

Particulars

As at 31* March 2025

As at 31* March 2024

Totai outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprise (Refer
note No. 31)

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than miero enterprise and

small enterprise (Refer note No. 40} 14.15 9.16
14.15 9.16
8. Other ctirvent llabliities

Particulars As at 31" March 2025 As at 31" March 2024

Unpald dividend* 6.52 7.08

Due to members 4.75 475

Other payables

- Statutory remittances** 1.15 1.06

- Due te employees 3.0m 315

~ Eamest money for membership 0.25 0.25

- Advances from members 4.89 6.1

- Securily from members 23.87 19.32

~ Security from others 19.69 813

- Cheques Issued but nct yet presented 0.13 -

- Other Advances 0.06 -

64.21 50.85

*  Unpald dividend does not include any amount due and outsianding required to be credited fo investors' Education and Protection

Fund.

** Statutory remittance includes contribution to provident fund, ESIC, tax deducted at source, Geods and service lax elg.

9, Short-term provisions

Particulars

As at 31" March 2025

As at 31" March 2024

Provision for employee benefits :
Leave encashment

Ludhiana Stock and Capital Limited
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Change In the carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment & Infangible Assets for the year ended 31 March 2025 are as follows:

{All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 3

A

GROSS BLOCK ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Balance as at Additlons Disposal | Balanceasat | Balanceasat | Depreclation/ | Elfminatedon | Balanceasat | Balanceasat | Balanceasat
PARTICULARS 1 April, 2024 31 March, 2025 | 1 April, 2024 amortlsation disposalef | 31 March, 2025 | 31 March, 2025 | 31 March, 2024
expenses during assels
the year
a) Property, Plant and Equipment
Freehold Land 65743 - - 65743 - - - - 657.43 65743
Beidings 36041 - 1.8 359.25 M4 430 110 1444 84.81 Ba.g7
Plant and Equipments A - - 3y 301,00 11.59 - 31268 84.63 16.22
Office Equipments 58.69 0.52 0.41 56.80 50.93 1.66 - 52.61 £.18 1.74
Fumiture and Fixtures 555 6.49 649 5.55 537 oM - 5.8 0.7 0.18
Vehicles 1.28 - - 1.28 099 0.06 - 1.05 0.23 029 | ..
Total {a) 1,460.67 .01 8.08 1,450.62 629.64 1762 110 B46.16 B13.45 83103 | .
b Intangible assets
Computer Software 296 - - 296 298 - - 2% - -
Tofal {b} 295 . - 296 298 - - 298 - I
Grand Tolal fa+b) 1,463.63 .01 8.08 1,462.58 632,60 1762 140 549.43 81345 83103 | .-
The Change n the camylng value of Property Plant and Equipment & Intanglble Assets for the year ended 31 March 2024 are as fallows;
GROSS BLOCK ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Balance as at Additions Disposal | Balanceasal | Balanceasat | Depreciation/ | Eliminatedon | Balanceasat | Bafanceasat | Balanceasat
PARTICULARS 1 April, 2023 3 March, 2024 | 1April, 2023 amortisation disposalof | 31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2023
expenses during assels
the year
a) Property, Plant and Equipment
Freehold Land 557.43 - - 65743 - Co- - - 65743 657.43
Buldings 36041 - - 36041 266.72 453 - Ny 89.17 9310
Plant and Equipments i - - A 286.93 1457 - 30109 7622 5038
Office Equipments 5653 216 - 58,60 4923 172 - 50,93 173 1.2
Fumiture and Fixures 5.55 - - 545 5.36 0. - 537 0.8 0.20
Vehicles 1.15 044 - 1.28 .93 0.05 - 0.9 .30 §.24
Total [a} 1,456.38 230 - 1.450.67 60016 2048 - 629.65 531.03 849,24
b} Infangible assets
Computer Software 295 - - 286 286 - - 295 - -
Total {b) 296 . - 296 296 . 298 - .
Grand Tofal fa+b) 1,461.33 230 . 1463.63 §12.12 2048 632,60 831.03 g43.21
Note

- Infangibie assels are not infernally generated.
- The value of part of building given on lease cannot be segregated for the purpose of separate disclosure as per requirement of azounting standard,

B
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11 Non current Investments

12

13

14

Ludhiana Stock and Capital Limited

- NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in T Lakhs, unless otherwlse stated)

Particulars

As at 31" March 2025

As at 31" March 2024

Long term investments

Unguoted (Valued at cost unless stated otherwlse)
Investment in Equity Instrument

Trade

Investment in equity instruments of subsidiary company 345,18 345.18

33,31,075 { previous year 33,31,075 ) Equity shares of ¥ 10/-

fully paid up of LSC Securilies Limited

345.18 345.18

Aggregate amount of unquoted invastments 345.18 345,18

Aggregate provislon for diminution in the value of investment - -

Long-term loans and advances

Particulars As at 31" March 2025 As at 31" March 2024

{Unsecured considered good )

Security deposits 15.32 16.32
Income tax refund {relating to earlier assessment years) 52.64 -
Advance income tax {net of provision for tax ’ Rs.1.25 iakhs 13.54 66.56

{Pravious year Rs. 4.41 lakhs)

Fair vaiue of Plan Assets (Net) (Refer Note- 36) 2.00 1.00
Loans to Subsidiary 600.00 - 600,00
Less : Due within tweive months (600.00) - -

83.50 682.87

Other non-current assets

Particulars As at 31* March 2025 As at 31" March 2024

{Unsecured considered good )

Others :

Members security:
- Held as fixed deposits* 147.64 145.13
- Held as members Investment
- In form of shares 4,94 5,81
= In form of bonds 5.50 1044 0.08 5.90
Security received from others {held as fixed depasits)* 1.77 1.77
Fixed Deposils with maturity of more than twelve months 195,00 45.00
(Refer note 16B)
Interest accrued on fixed deposils 3.71 0.24
358.56 " 198.05

* Heid under lien marked in favour of company

Current Investments

Particulars As at 31" March 2025 As at 31" March 2024

Investments [n bonds (Quoted)

{Tax free honds listed on Stock Exchange)

8.76% 199 (Previous Year- 198) bcnds face value of Rs. 5,000/ each of 11.88 11.88

National Housing Bank

8,50% 150 (Previous Year- 150) bends face value of Rs. 1,000/- each 1.74 1.74

of Naticnal Highway Authority of India

7.35% 999 {Previous Year- 999) bonds face value of Rs, 1,000/- each 10.60 10.60

of National Bank for Agricuiture and Rurai Development

Il =0




 NOTES FORMING PART OF STAND:': LONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwlse stated)

Particulars As at 31" March 2025 As at 31" March 2024
7.39% 1,299 (Previous Year- 1299) bonds face value of Rs. 1,000/- each 13.83 13.83
of Heusing Urban Develepment Corporation
7.35% 999 (Previous Year- 999) bonds face value of Rs. 1,000/- each 10.59 10.59
of Indlan Railway Finance Corpcration Limited
7.37% 300 (Previous Year- 300) bonds face value of Rs. 1,000/~ each 3.18 .18
of National Highway Authority of Indla
7.43% 100 (Pravious Year- 100} bonds face value of Rs. 1,000/~ each 1.06 1.06
of National Highway Authority of india
7.35% 78 (Previcus Year- 78) bonds face value of Rs, 1,000/- each 0.83 0.83
of Powar Finance Corporation

53,71 53.71
Aggregate amount of quoted investments . 53.71 53.71
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 56.21 §6.08

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - -
Aggregate fair vaiue of unquoted investments - -
Aggregate provision far diminution in value of other cument investments - -

The basis of market valuaticn of tax free bonds :

Falr value of investments In bonds Is determined by reference to quates frem the financial Institutions, L.e net asset value (NAV) for
investments on bends daclared by stock exchange.

15 Trade receivabies

PARTICULARS As at 31" March 2025 As at 31" March 2024
- Secured, considered good* 459 3.79
- Unsecured, considered good 1.95 2.26
- Considered Doubtful 191 0.40
8.45 6.45
Less : Allowances for doubtful debts 1.91 0.40
6.54 6.05

——————————

Aiso refer Noto No, 39
* Secured against fixed deposits

16(a) Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at 31" March 2025 As at 31" March 2024

1) Gash and cash equivalents
a) Balances with banks

- In cumrent accounts 3344 24.67

b) Cheques in hand - 1.68
¢) Cash in hand 0.38 0.36
33.82 26.72

Ludhiana Stock and Capital Limited
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" NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{All amounts In ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwlse stated)

16 (b) Bank Bailances other than Cash and Cash Equlvalents

Eammarked balances with banks :

- Dividend account 6.52 7.08
Depcsit with maturity of more than three menths but
less than twelve menths 276.46 350.02
Deposlts with maturity of more than tweive months 195.00 45.00
Less: Shown under other Non-Current assets
{Refer note 13) {195.00) 276.46 {45.00) 350.02
282.98 357.10
17 Short-term loans and advances
Partlcuiars As at 31" March 2025 As at 31" March 2024
{Unsecured conslidered gocd )
Loans and advances to subsidiary 600,00 -
Others advances 0.16 0.50
Loans and advances to employees' 0.02 0.36
Other recoverables - 0.08
600.18 0.92
18 Other Current Assets
Particufars As at 31" March 2025 As at 31" March 2024
Members sacurity:
- Held as fixed deposits 1.33 1.33
Interest accrued on lcans and advances to subsidiary 10.65 11.58
Prepaid expenses 242 2.29
Interest accrued on:
- Fixed deposits 10.56 17.97
- Bonds 1.07 1.07
- Punjab State power corporation Limited-Security 0.83 12.46 - 10.04
Other recoverables
- From subsidiary 0.88
- From others 1.29
Balance and deposils with Govemment Authcrifles 0.30
29,33 34,23
19 Revenue from operations
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31" March 2025

31" March 2024

Other operating revenuss :
- Membership fee
- Transfer fee received
- Summer/Winter Training Fee
- Malntenance charges received

Ludhiana Stock and Copital Limited

293
1.04
288
107.03

113.88

2.96
1.31

1.9
100.39

106.57
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" 'NOTES FORMING PART OF STA DALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 income from investments and deposits

{All amounts In ¥ Lakhs, unless ctherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31" March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest received (Gross):
- From banks 28.46 27.78
- Frem current investments 3.78 3.76
- Frem others 0.86 0.05
- Subsidiary 48.00 48.00
Dividend Income from Non Cuirent Investments
- Subsidiary B.32 7.49
89,42 87.08
21 Other income
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
"~ 31" March 2025 31" March 2024
Rent received 68.11 110.38
Sundry balances written back 0.15 0.15
Gain on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 1.10 -
Miscellaneous receipts 10.06 9.82
79.42 120.35
22 Empioyee henefits expense
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31" March 2025 31" March 2024
Salaries and wages 40.48 40.37
Contribution to provident and othar funds 5.74 6.73
Staff weifare 2.62 269
48,84 49.78
23 Other expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31" March 2025 31" March 2024
Electricity and water 90.14 76.91
Repairs and maintanancs - Plant and machinery 9.20 5.69
Repairs and maintenance - Bulldlngs 20.49 1.81
Insurance 239 2.35
Rates and taxes 571 3.25
Legal and professional 6.07 9.80
Travelling and conveyance 0.07 0.09
Printing and stationery 0.76 0.80
Payment to auditor’s {note no. 34 ) 2,00 2.86
Meeting expenses 0.40 0.61
Directors' sitting fee 013 0.21
Computer Repair & Maintenance 0.05 0.08
Ccmmunication expenses 0.92 273
Security & Housekeeping Charges 57.14 53.30
Allowanca for doubtful debt 1.51 -
Miscellanecus expenses 11.51 11.22
208.49 171.74

Ludhiana Stock and Capltal Limited



 NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24,
25,

28.

27.

28, a)

b)

29,

30.

a.

{All amounts In ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwlse stated)

Contingent Liahilities and commitments: Rs. Nil {previous year nll) (to the extent not provided as no cash flow is expected)
The company is a Small and Medium Sized Company {SMC) as defined in the General Instructions In respect of Accounting
Standards notifled under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the company has complled with the Accounting Standards, as
applicable to a Small and Medium sized company.

The company is presently performing functions of a holding company by coordinating the policy and administration of existing
subsidiary apart from providing infrastructure and related services to its members and contributing to the society by providing
summer tralning fo the students of various streams.

“Currentinvestmentis an investment that is by its nature readily reallzabie and is intended to be held far not mare than one year
from the date on which Investmentis made”.

The investments shown under the head Current Investments are heid for more than one year, which are lo be shown as Non-
Current Investments but as per decision taken by the management of the company these are intended to be held for sale as and
when the company needs fund, therefore shown undarhead “Current Investments.”

in case of defaullers and suspended members the company got the scrips transferred in its name and accounting entries for such
scrips are made in respect of defaulting members and suspended members by crediting “Member's security (in kind) account”
and debiting "Member's investment account”, The serips in such cases have been valued at the quoted price prevailing on the
day of tendering of transfer deeds.

The securities so transferred by the company in its name pertaining to defaulting or suspended members remained unclalmed far
along period and to the best efforts of the company, no member came forward fo claim these securities despite advertisement
made by the companyin various newspapers.

The company has disposed off these unclaimed securities in a recognized stock exchange has written back a sum of Rs. 38.03
Lakhs as uncialmed balances and such is shown underthe head “extraordinary items” in the Statement of Profit and Loss in view
ofits unusual and infrequent nature.

Disciosure u/s 186(4)

‘The company has granted the loan amount of Rs. 600 Lags (Rupee Six Hundred Lacs Cnly) to the Subsidiary company, Mis. LSC
Securities Ltd. Specifleally for its princlpal business aclivities at interest 8% p.a., Initially for the period of 3 years vide Loan
Agreement executed on 06.02,2023, This Is as perthe disclosurarequired u/s Section 186{(4) of The Companiss Act, 2013.

The intanglble asset which camprises of software had been amortized @ 20% on straightiine basis as the useful life thereof has
been estimated to be not mare than five years.

Disclosures retuired under Section 22 of The Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

The detalis reiating fo micro, small and medium enterprises are as hereunder:

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31°'March,2025 31% March, 2024

{a} Amount remaining unpaid to suppliers as at the end of vear.

- Principal amount - -

- Intarest due thereon - -

(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, - -
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), aiong with
the amount of the payment made to the suppiier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year

(c) The amount of interest  due and payable for the period of delay In making - -
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)
but without adding the interest speciiied under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

{d} Interest accrued and remaining unpald at the end of the year

- Interest acerued during the year - -

- Interest remaining unpaid as at the end of the year - —

(¢) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the -
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually : -
paid fo the small enterprise, for the purpose of disailowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006.

Note: The amounts have been determined to the exient such parties have been identified an the basis of information
avallable with the company. This has been relled upan by the auditors.

32. Related Party Disclosure in accordance wlth the accounting standard-18 “Related Party Disclosura”
a) Disclosure of Related Parfies and reiation between the party.

Subsidiary: LSC Securities Limited

b) Thefoilowlng transactions were camied autwith related parly in the ordinary course of business during the year:
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{All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Subsidiary
Year ended Year ended
31st March,2025 31st Margh,2024
Rent received including Maintenance charges 57.86 53.34
{Inclusive of taxes Rs. 8.83 Lakhs previous year Rs.8.14 Lakhs/-}
Reimbursement of Expenses received (Inclusive of faxes) 16.50 13.54
Sale of Fixed Assets (Inclusive of Taxes) 8.14 -
Interest Received 48.00 48.00
Dividend received 8.33 7.49
c) Theoutstanding balances with related pariies are as foliows::
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March,2025 31st March,2024
Due from Subsidiary 11.53 11.58
Cuistanding balance of loan to subsidiary 600.00 600.00
d) Transactionswith Key Managerial Personns!
Key Management Personne!
Mr. Ved Parkash Gaur Director )
Particulars Year ended Year entled
31% March,2025 31% March,2024
Director's Sitting Fee (Mr. Ved Parkash Gaur) 0.13 .21

The related party relationship s as Identified by the company and refied upon by the auditors.

33. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of eamings per share (EPS) as disclosed in the statement of profit and loss has been made in accordance with
Accounting Standard (AS-20) on “Eamings per Share" notified by Companies (Accounting Standards) Ruies, 2021.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31" March,2025 31° March,2024
Net Profit attributable to equity shareholders (Rs.in Lakhs) (A) 43.77 68.47
Extraordinary items: Unclaimed credit balances wiitten back (B} { Rs.in Lakhs.) 38.03 0
Net Profit attributable to equlty shareholders excluding exiraordinary items 573 68.47
{C=(A)-(B)} { Rs.in Lakhs.)
Average number of Basic Equity Shares (D) 59,200 59,200
Average number of Dilulive Equity Shares {E) 58,200 58,200
Basic Eamings Per Share {C/D) (Rs.) 9.68 115.66
Diluted Earnings per Share (C/E) (Rs.) 9.68 115.66
Face Value of Per Equity Share {Rs.) 10 10
34.  Payment to Audifors:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31* March,2025 31 March,2024
Audit Fee 1.50 1.50
Tax Audit Fee 0.30 0.30
In other capacity (Cerlificate fee etc.) 0.10 0.80
Reimbursement of expenses 0.10 0.16
35, In accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS)- 28 on “Impalrment of Assets” the company has assessed as on balarice

sheetdate, whether there are any indications (as listed In paragraphs 8 to 10 of the standard) with regards to the impairment of
any of the assets. Based on such assessment it has been asceralned that no potential 1oss Is present and therefore, formal
estimate of recoverabie amount has not been made. Accordingiy no impairment loss has been provided In the books of

account.
36. Empicyee Baenofits:

The position of post-employment benefits and leng term employee benefits recognized in the statement of profit and loss
and balance sheet as required in accordance with Accounting Standard — 15 Employee Benefits are as under :-

I. Defined Contribution Plans :
a

—

Contribution to Empioyees Provident Fund.

During the vear, the company has recognized an expense of Rs.3.61 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 3.60 Lakhs) in respect of

b) During the year, the company has recognized an expense of Rs. 0.83 Lakhs {previous vear Rs. 0.83 Lakhs) in respect of

Contribution to Empioyee State Insurance.

Il. Defined Benefit Pians; Gratulty—The amount of graluity has been compuled based on employee's salary and year of
employment with the company. Gratuity has been accrued based on actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date carried

outby anindependent actuary.
Lud_hiunu Stock and Capital Limited
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a) Changein the presentvalue of the obligation:

£S FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{All amounts In T Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Gratuity (Funded)
2024-25 2023-24
Present Value of defined benefit obligation as at beginning of the year,| 11.75 15,32
Interest Cost 0.85 1.11
Current Service Cost 1.04 0.88
Benefits Payments - (6.75)
Actuarial Loss / (Gain) 0.47 1.19
Present Value obligation as at end of the year. 1411 11.75
b) Changeinthe FairVaijue of Plan Asset:
Particulars Gratuity (Funded)
2024-25 2023-24
Fair value of Plan Assets as at beginning of the year 12,75 15.63
Expected retum on Plan Assets 0.83 1.13
Contributions by the company 2.27 2.84
Actual Benefits paid - (6.75)
Actuarial (Loss)/gain 0.26 {0.11)
Fair value of Plan Assets as at end of the year 16.11 12.75
¢) Amountrecognized in Balance Sheet:
Particulars Gratuity (Funded)
2024-25 2023-24
Present value of defined henefit obligation as at end of the year 14.11 11.75
Fair value of Plan Assels as at end of the year 16.11 12.75
Funded Status 2.00 1.00
Net Assets/ (Liability) recoghized in Balance Sheet 2.00 1.00
d) Expense RecognizedInStatement of Profitand Loss
Particulars Gratulty (Funded)
2024-25 2023-24
Current service cost 1.04 0.88
Interest cost 0.85 1.11
Expected return on Plan Assels {0.83}) . (1.13)
Net Actuarial Lossf(gain) 0.21 1.30,
Total Expenses recognized in Statement of profit and loss 1.27 2.16
e) Princlpie actuariaiassumptions atthe Balance sheet date
Particulars Gratuity (Funded)
2024-25 2023-24
Discount Rate ( perannumn ) 6.50% 7.25%
Rate of increase in compensation levels {per annum } 5.00% 5.00%
Expected Rate of return on plan assets { perannum ) 6.50% 7.25%
Expected Average remaining working lives of employess ( years ) 11.30 12.30
Method Used Projected Unit Projected Unit
Credit Method Credit Method

) The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promaotion
and otherrelevantfactors, such as supply and demand in employee market.
g) Pian assets are maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India {LIC). The details of investments maintalned by LiC

have not been fumished to the company. The same have therefore notbeen disclosed.
h)  Amounts of defined benefits for the current and previous four years are as follows:
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(AI[ amounts‘in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwlse stated)

Particular 2024.25 2023-24 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21
Experience adjustment

- Qn plan liabilities loss/(gain) 0.13 1.19 (0.28} (0.25) {0.53})
- On plan assets gain/{loss) 0.26 {0.11) (0.15) (0.09) {0.22)
Present value of defined benefit obligations 14.11 11.75 15.32 16.43 15.30
as at the end of the year i
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of 16.11 12.75 16.63 17.41 16.31
the year

Excess / (deficit) of plan assets aover 2.00 1.00 0.32 0.29 0.92
obligations

11l. Other long term Employee Bernefits : Leave encashmant — The ccmpany made provisions for the leave eamed by the
employees during the year on accrual basis. The detali of leave encashmentis as follows :

Partlculars Year ended March Year ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024

Expenses recognized In the staterment of profit and loss 0.88 0.78

Obligation at the end of the vear 0.89 0.79

37.  Figuresin brackets indlcate deductions. The amount has besn rounded offto the nearest rupees in Lakhs.
38.  The detali of deferred tax liabilities and assets as per Accounting Standard —AS 22 on “Accounting for Taxes on income” as atthe
end of each reporting period is as under.

Nature of Timing Difference Peferred Tax Liability Movement Deferred Tax Liability
(Assets) as on during the year {Assets) as on
01.04.2024 31.03.2025
Deferred Tax Liahilifies 1049 0.38 10.87

(i) Related fo Property plant and equipment
Less: Deferred Tax Assets - - -
Deferred tax Liabllity (Net) 1049 0.38 10.87

38. Tradereceivables Agelngschedule
(i) Ason31{"March,2025

Particulars QOutstanding for following period from due date of payments
Less than6 | 6 Months « 1-2 Years 23 Years More than 3 Total
Months 1 Year Years

() Undisputed Trade Recalvables 440 187 0.23 0.01 0.03 6.54
(I}  Undisputed Trade Recsivables

Considered doubtful - - 0.48 0.36 1.08 1.80
(i) Disputed Trade Receivables

Considered Good 3 - - " " -
(iv} Disputed Trade Receivables R _

Considered doubtful " B - -
Total (A 4.40 1.87 0.69 0.37 1.10 8.44
Allowance for Doubfful Debis (B) - - (0.46) {0.36) {1.08) (1.90}
Total (A-B) 4.40 1.87 0.23 0.01 0,02 §.54

() Ason31"March,2024

Particulars Outstanding for following period from due date of payments
Less than | 6 Monthsfo | 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
6 Months 1 Year Years
i) Undisputed Trade Recelvables-
() Undisputed Trade 432 1.00 0.35 0.23 0.15 6.05
) Undisputed Trade Recelvables-
o Consigered doubtiul - - B - 0.40 0.40
{ii) Disputed Trade Receivables-

Considered Good - 3 B - 3 B
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-

Considered doubtful - B B " ) 3
Total (A) 4.32 1.00 0.35 0.23 0.55 6.45
Allowance for doubtful debts (B) - - - - (0.40) (0.40)
Tofal (A-B} 4.32 1.00 0.35 0,23 0.15 6.05
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TSRS R 7 (A-II. ;rlnau.ntsuin ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

40.  Ageingschedule of Trade Payables from due date of payment
(i} Asat31"March,2025

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not Due Less than 1 1-2 Years 2.3 Years More Than 3 Total
Year Years
{iy MSME - B - - - -
{I1} Others 8.55 - . - - 8.55
{iil) Disputed Dues-MSME " - - - - "
(iv) Disputed Dues-Others - - - - - -
(v} Unbilled dues 5.60 - - - - 5.60
Total 14.15 - - - - 14.15
(i) Ason31"March, 2024
{Amount In Lakhs)
Particulars Outstanding for following perlods from due date of payment
Not Due Less than 1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More Than 3 Total
Year Years
{i) MSME - - - - _ -
{1l} Others 5.79 - - - - 5.78
{iii) Disputed Dues-MSME - - - - - _
{iv) Disputed Dues-Others - - - . - -
{v) Unbilled dues 3.37 - - - - 3.37
Total 9.16 - - - - 9.16

41, The iease rent income recognized in the statement of profit and loss during the year amaunts to Rs.68.11 Lakhs (previous year
Rs.110.38 Lakhs) has been shown under Other income in Note no. 21. The other disclosures in respect of leases are notapplicable
tothe company.

42, The company did not have any lang-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were anymaterial foreseeable

iosses.

43.  As per Section 124 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) provides that ail shares in respect ofwhich dividend has not been pald or
claimed for 7 consecutive years or more shali be transferred to investor's Education and Profection Fund.The company has
deposited unclalmed Interim dividend of Financlai Year 2017-18 during the year amounting to Rs. 0.8 Lakhs/- {o the Investor
Educations and Protection Fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereon.

44. Koy Financiai Ratlos

31st March 31*'March %o

S.Ne.| Partleulars Numorator Doenominator 2025 2024 Varlance Romarks
1 Cument Ratio Curmrent Assols Current Liablllties 12.68 9.26 36.93% Increase [n ralio dug
te maturilles of lang
tarm loans due
within twolve
months as on
balaneo sheot datoe.,
2 Dabt service Net Profit aftar Interest + principal N.A N.A N.A N.A
covarage ratle | taxes + repayments
Depraclatlon
-+ [ntarest
Dabt equlty Quitstanding Shareheolders® N.A N.A N.A N.A
ratin borowings agquity
Reatum on Net profit aftar Average 1.86% 3.11% -37,04% Fall in ratlc dua fall
exulty ratic taxas shareholdars™ In net profit due to
oquity fall In revenue vis a
vis pravious yaar.
[ Inventory Cost of goads Avarage Inveniory N.A N.A N.A N.A
turnover ratin sold
[ ‘Trade Net eradit sales Avarage accounts 28.91 27.59 4.80% N.A
racalvable racolvable
tumnovar ratlo
7 Trade Nat credit Average Payables 6.34 10.78 -41.19% Dua to Incraase In
payables purchase trade payables
tumovar ratlo
8 Net capltal Net sales Working captal 0.27 0.55 -50.82% NA
{urnover ratle
9 Nat profit Mot prafit Not sales 38.43% 64.25% -40.18% Fall In ratlo dua te
ratlo {all In net profils due
1o fall in rent
incoma.
H 10 Raolurn Eaming bofora Tanglblo nat worth 0.35% 3.27% -88.389% Docronno in rotle
! on capltal interast & taxes +total debt + duse to fall in
! employed Deferred tax eamings as thera Is
| liabllity ' deeline In rental
! income,
! 11 | Ralurm on Nst Profit aftar Net block of PPE 5.38% 8.24% 34.70% Decraasa in ratio
invastmant taxes dus to fall in nat
profits due o fall in
rental incoms.
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45, The Company has not fraded or Invested in Crypta currency or Virtual Currency, during the financial year ended 31* March, 2025.

486, The company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding have beeninitiated or pending againstthe company for
helding any henami property under the Benaml Transactions {Prohibition} Act, 1988 {45 of 1988).

47, The Hon'ble Supreme Courtin aruling during the year 2019 had passed a judgement on the definifion and scope of 'Basic Wages'

underthe Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952. Pending issuance of guldelines by the regulatory
authorities on the application of this ruling, the impact on the Company, if any, cannot be ascertained. The Company will update
its provision, on receiving further clarity on this subject matter.

48, ‘The company has not been declared as willful defauiter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

49, The company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companles Act, 2013 or section
560 of CompaniesAct, 19586,

50. There are no loans or advances In ioans are granted to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and their related parties (as defined under

Companies Act, 2013), either severally orjointly with any other person, that are:
{a) Repayablaondemand;or
{b) Withoutspecifying any terms or period ofrepayment

51. The company has not advanced or loaned or Invested funds (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity{les), including forelgn entitles {"intermediaries™) with the
understanding (whetherrecorded in writing or otherwise} that the intermediary shall.

(a) directly orindirectly lend orinvest in other person or entities [dentified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the company
{Ultimate Beneficlaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security orthe Iike to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

52, The company has not received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entfities {Funding parties) with the
understanding (whetherrecorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall.

{(a) directiy or indirectly lend or invest in other person or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding
party {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{b) provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Benefictaries,

53. The company does nothave any charge or safisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC heyond the statutory period.
54, The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 with regard to corporate saclal responsibliity are not applicable
58, The company does not have any such transactions which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any
otherrelevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

56, The other Information required by the paragraph 5 of general instructions for preparation of the statement of profit and loss as per
Schedule lli ofthe Companies Act, 2013 is notapplicable to the cecmpany.

57. Pravious year's figures have been recast/regrouped wherever necessary, to make these comparable with current year's figures.

58. Events occurring after the balance sheet date

The Company has deciared dividend of Rs. 25 per equity share of Rs. 10/- each agaregating Rs. 14.80 Lakhs for the financial
year 2024-25 in its Board meeting held on 30" August, 2025 Subject to the approval of shareholders at the ensuring Annual
General Meeting.

o
As per our separate report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Diresotors
For SCV & Co. LLP of Ludhiana Stock and Capital Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000235N/N500089
sdf- Sd/- Sdi-
(Tribhawan Singh Thapar) (Sanjeev Gupta) (Vikas Batra)
(San]iv Mohan) Chairperson Dlrectar Director
Partner (DIN - 00484576) (DIN - 00412914)  [DIN - 01964260)
M. No. 086066
Sd/- sd/-
PLACE : LUDHIANA {Atul Chikersal) (Jaswinder Singh)
DATED : 30-08-2025 General Manager Manager Accounts
(_ UDIN : 25086066BMKNQETS00 (PAN - AILPCA041L) (PAN - BMTPS3113C) |
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TOTHE MEMBERS,
Ludhiana Stock and Capital Limlted
Reporton the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ludhiana Stock and Capital Limlted (* hereinafter referred
to as the Holding Company”) and its Subsidiary (the holding Company and its Subsidiary together referred fo as "the group®) which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the
Consoiidated Statement of Cash fiows for the year ended, including a summary of the significant accounting policles and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our Information and accarding to the explanations given to us the aforesald consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards preseribed under
section 133 of the Act, read with Companies {Accounting Standards) Rule, 2021,of thelr consolidated state of affalrs of the Group as
at31 March 2025, the consolidated statement of profitand its consolidated cash ficws for the yearended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3.
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We conducted our audit of the consoildated financial statements in aceordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act, Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financlal Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with *
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICA) together with the ethicai requirements that are
relevantfo our auditofunder the provisions of the Actand the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtainedis suffictentand
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements,

Infarmation Other than the Consoiidated Flnanciai Statements and Auditor's Reportthereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is respansibie for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report but does not include the
consolidated financial statemenits, standalone financial statements, and our auditor's reportthereon.

The Board's Reportis expected to make available to us afterthe date of Auditor's Report.

Our opinion on the Consoiidated financial statements does not cover the other infarmation and we do not and will not express any
formofassurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consclidated financial statements, our responslbility is to read the other information identified
above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materiaily inconsistent with the
Consolidated financial statements or our kncwledge obtained during our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibiiities of Managementand Board of Directors for the Consolidated Finaneiai Statements

The Halding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consclidated financial
statements in term of the requirement of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financlal position, conselidated
financlal performance and consolidated cash fiows of the group In accordance with the accounting principles generally aceepted in
{ndia including the Accounting Standards specified undersection 133 of the Act, The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets cf the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and otherirregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpase of preparaticn ofthe consolidated financial statements by the Directors of Hoiding Company, as aforesald.

In preparing the consolidated financlal statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the group are
responsibie for assessing the ability of the respective entity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate theirrespective entity orto cease operations, orhas no realistic alternative butto do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the group are also responsible for overseelng the Company's
financial reporting process of the group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's repert that includes our opinion. Reasonahble
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs wiil always detecta
material misstatement when It exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material If, indlvidually orin
the aggragate, they could reascnably be expeoted fo Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
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1.

consolidated financial statements.

As part ofan auditin accordance with SAs, we exercise professionai judament and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a
basis forour opinlon. The risk of not detecting a matetial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error,
asfraud may invalve collusion, forgery, intentional omlssions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

QObtaln an understanding of intemal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to deslgn audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the Act, we are alsa responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent has
adequate intemal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and relaled disclosures
made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists reiated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group to confinue as a golng cencem. If we conciude that a raterial uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures In the consolidated financlal statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to medify
ouroplnion. Qurconclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
orconditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concemn.

Evaluate the overaii presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financlal statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consalidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Oblalned sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entitfes or business activities within the
Group fo express an opinion on the Consolidated financlal statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financiai statements, of which we
are theindependent auditors,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the eccnomic decisions of a reasonably knowiedgeable user of the Annual Consolidated Financial Resulls may be
infiuenced, We conslder quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in {i) planning the scope of our audlt work and in evaluating
the results of ourwork; and {il) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consclidated financlal statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
ouraudit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethlcal requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legai and Regulatory Requirements

12

As required by paragraph 3(xxi} of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘CARO 2020") issued by the Central
Gavernment of India in terms of sub-sectlon (11} of section 143 of the Act, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse
remarks included in CARO repert of the financial statements of the subsidiary referred to in other matter section above, which
are Included in these Consolidated Financiai Statements.

13.(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report to the extent appiicable that:

{a) We have soughtand obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and beliefwere necessary for

the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(b} In our oplnion, proper books of account as required by law relating to the preparafion of the aforesaid consalidated financtal

statements hava been kept so far as it appears from our examinatlen of those books except for matters stated In paragraph 2(B){vi)
below on reporting under Ruie 11{g) of the Companies {Accounting standards) rules, 2021

(c¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consalidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolldated Statement of Cash Flow

dealt with by this Report agree with the relevant books of account and records maintalned for the purpose of preparatlon of the
consolidated financial statements.

{d) In ouropinion, the aforesald cansolldated financial statements comply with the Acoounting Standards specified under Section 133

ofthe Act.

{e) On the basls of the written representations received from the directors as on 31"March 2025 taken on record by the Board of

Directors, none of the directors of the group companles are disquallfied as on 31"March 2025 from being appointed as a Director in
terms of Section 164(2) ofthe Act.

{f) The reservations relating to the maintenance of accaunts and other matters connected therawith are as staled In the paragraph
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Companles {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021,

() With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and the operating
effactiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report [n “Annexure A" which is based on the auditor's report of the holding
company and subsidiary company. Qur report expresses an unmadified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consciidated Financial Statements of those companies.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and

Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of ourinformation and accarding fo the explanations given to us:

i} The Consolidated financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending litigations on the Conselidated financial position of the
Group. Refer note 29 of Consolidated financial statements.

i) The Group did nothave any material foreseeable losses on long-term cantractincluding derivative confracts.

1li} There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred to the investor Education and Protection Fund by
the holding company during the year. In Subsidiary company, Rs.14,800 is required to be credited to Investors' Education and
Protection Fund but not credited within the time limits as prescribed under Companies Act, 2013 (Refer note 47 of consolidated
financial statements).

{iv)(a) The respective managements of the holding company and its subsidlary whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are malerial either individually or in the
aggregate) have been advanced arloaned or Invested {gither from borrawed funds or share premium orany other sources or kind of
funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including forelan enfities
{"Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether reccrded in writlng or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directiy or Indirectiy,
lend or invest in other persans or entlfies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or such
subsidiary ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalfof the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and lts subsidiary whose financlal statements have been audited under the

Act have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary from any persan(s) or entity{ies), including
forelgn entities (“Funding Pariies"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or
any of such subsldiary shall, directly orindirectly, lend orinvest in other perscns orentities [dentified in any manner whatsoaverby or
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries"} or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures, that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, performed by us,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us fo believe that the representations under sub-ciause (i) and (if) of Rule 11(e)
contain any material misstatement.

{v) The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Company during the year is inaccordance with Section
123 ofthe Act, as applicable.
As stated in Note No. 49 of the consalidated financial statements, the Board of Directors of the holding company and its subsidlary,

have proposed dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members of halding and subsidiary company at the
ehsuing respective Annual General Mesting. Such dividend proposed is In accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

{vi) Proviso to Rute 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014 for maintalning books of account using accounting sofiware which

has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facllity is applicable to the group with effect from st April, 2023, Based on our
examination and any otherinformation givento us:

s inrespact of the Subsidiary company, it has used accounting software for malntaining its boaks of account, which has a feature of
recording audit trall {edit log) facility and the same has operated thraughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software.

«  Further, during audit we did not come across any instance of audlt trail feature belng tampered with. Furthermore, the company
-adheres to a policy of maintaining auditirails in accordance with statutory requirements for record retention.

14,  With respectto the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repart in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the
Act, asamended.

!n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we report that no remuneration has

been paid by the respective company to its directors during the year. Therefore, the provisions of subsection (16) of section 197 are

notapplicable.

ForSCV & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ER. No.: 000235N/N500089

Place: Ludhiana {Sanflv Mchan)

Date: 30.08,2025 Partner

UDIN : 25086066BMKNQF4890 M. No.086066
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NSO IDA BINBEPENBE NTAUDI TOR 'S REPORT annexureA

Annexure-"A"TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

(Referred fo in paragraph 14{f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the members of Ludhiana
Stock and Capital Limited on the consolidated financial statement forthe yearended March 31,2025)

Reporton the Intenal Finanelal Contrals Over Financlal Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companles Act, 2013
{"the Act™y

We have audited the internal financial control over financial reporing of Ludhiana Stock and Capital Limited (“the Holding Company™}, its
subsidiary(the holding company and subsidiary collectively referred to as “the group®) as of March 31,2025 in conjunclion with our audit of the
consolidated financial statement of Hoiding Company forthe year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility forinternal Financial Gontrols

The respective Board of Directors of the Halding and its Subsidiary company which are incorporated in indla, are responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financlal centrols based on the Intemal controi over financlal reporting criteria established by the respective
Companies considering the essential components of internal contro! stated in the Guldance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, Implementation and
maintenanoe of adequate intemal financial condrols that were operating effeotively for ensuring the crderly and efficient conduct ofits business,
including adherence 1o respeclive company's palioles, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
CompaniesAct,2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an oplnion on the internai financial controls with reference to consolidated financlal statements, based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note an Audit of Internal Finanelal Controls aver Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") issved by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed undersection 143(10) of
the Companles Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with referenoe {o consolidated financlal statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit o obtaln reasonabie
assurance about whether adequate intemai financial conirols with reference to consolidated financial statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures {o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intenal financial contrals with reference to
oonsollidated financiai statements and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of intemal financial controls with referenoe to consolidated
financlal statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial contrals with reference to consolidated financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaiuating the design and operating effectiveness of Interal control based
on {he assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial staterents, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the auditevidence we have obtainedis sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for curaudit epinion on the intemnal financlal

controls with reference to consolidated financlal statements of the HoldIng and subsidiary company which are incorporated in India.

Meaning ofinternai FInancial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Acompany's intemnal financial control aver financial reporting Is a procass designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the rellability of

financial reporiing and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles. Acompany's intemal financial control overfinanclal reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1)  Perlain io the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets ofthe company.

{2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to pemmit preparation of financlal statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that recelpts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors ofthe company; and

(3) Providereasonabie assurance regarding prevention ortimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that oould have a materiai effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these financial statements

Because of the inherent limitatlons of intemnal financlal contrals over financial reporting, including the possibility of eollusion or impraper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to errer or fraud may eceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal finaneial controis over financial reporting te future pericds are subject to the risk that the intemal financiai centrol aver
financial reperiing may become Inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policles or pracedures
may deteriorate.
Opinlon
In our opinlen and to the best of information and according to the explanalion given to us, the Holding Company and its subsidiary company
have, in all the materiai respects , an adequate internal financlal controlis system over financial reporting and such internal financial centrols
over financial reporling were operating effectively as at 31 march 2025, based on internal control over financlal reporting criteria established by
the respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financlal
Controls over Financial Reporting Issued by Instifute of Chartered Accountants of India.
: For SCV & Co. LLP

Charteraed Accountants
E.R. No.: 000235N/N500089

Place: Ludhiana {Sanjiv Mohan})
Date: 30.08.2025 Partner
UDIN : 25086066BMKNQF4890 M. No.0860E6
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{All amounfs in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars hote As at 31" March 2025 As at 31" March 2024
| EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders’ Funds
a) Share capltal 2 6.02 6.02
b) Reserves and surplus 3 3,237.27 3,022.40
3,243.29 3,028.42
2 Minorlty Intarest
a} Share caplial 311.07 311.07
b} Reserves and surplus 1,292.94 1,119.33
1,604.01 1,430.40
3 Non-currant llabllitles
a) Long-tarm barmowings - -
b) Deferred tax fiabillias {net) 4 10.92 8.62
¢) Other long term labiilies 5 266.97 24347
d) Long-term provisians B 4.74 -
282,63 252,09
4 Gurrant llabllities
a) Short-term borrowings 7 - 274.10
b) Trade payables 8 - -
T) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprlsas and small
enterprises; and
i) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 113.28 10471
enterprise and smali enterprise
c} Other current Ilablfiiles g 20,092.65 31,807.92
d} Short-term provisions 10 142 5.03
29,207.35 32,291.74
TOTAL 34,337.27 37,002.65
N ASSETS
1 Non-current assots
a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets 1
i) Property Plant and Equipment 882.71 850,39
i) Intangihle assets 5.00 9.00
888.71 908.39
b} Mon-cumrent Investments - -
c) Long-term loans and advances 12 226.97 315.94
d) Gther non-current assets 13 702.08 573.09
829.05 8389.03
2 Current assats
a) Current investments 14 53.71 53,71
b} Inventories 15 - 0.15
c) Trada receivables 16 289.56 159.81
d) Cash and cash equivalents 17(a) 177.57 586.81
o) Bank Balances other than (d) above 17(b} 30,529.20 32,492.74
f) Short-tarm loans and advances 18 1.92 1.69
¢) Other current assels 19 1,467.54 1,910.32
32,519.50 35,205.23
TOTAL 34,337.27 37,002.65
See accompanylng notes to the flnanclal statemonts
(" As por our soparato roport of ovan date For and con bohalf of the Board of Diractors )
For SCV & Co. LLP of Ludhlana Stock and Capltal Limitod
Chartorod Accountants
Flrm Rogn. No. D00235N/N500059 Sdi- Sdf-
{Sanjlv Mohan) (Trlhhav‘;::lral!zlgrggn‘l’hapar) (San]DnI::cg:pta)
Partner {DIN - 00494576) {DIN - 00412914)
M. No. 0BG0OG66
sd/- Sdl-
PLACE : LUDHIANA {Vikns Batra) (Atul Ghikersal)
DATED : 30-08-2025 Directar General Manager
. UDIN : 25086066BMKNQF4890 {DIN - 019642E0)

(PAN - AlLPC4041L)_/
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. C@NSOLID TEDSTATEMENTOF PR OFIT ANDL OSSJ»:;FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

{All amounts In T Lakhs, unless otherwlse stated)

Forthe year ended For the year ended
PARTICULARS Note No.
R R 31" March 2025 31" March 2024
income :
i  Revenue from operations 20 730,50 705.45
i Income frem investments and deposits 21 2,520.18 2,074.58
i~ Otherincome 22 37.55 82,83
v Total revenue ( I+ Ii +lfl) 3,288.23 2,862.86
v Expenses:
Employee benefits expense 23 201.10 189.38
Finance costs 24 1,689.01 1,377.94
Dapraciation and amortization expense 39.80 49.50
Other expenses 25 841.67 818.68
Total expenses 2,771.58 2,435.50
vi  Profil before extraordinary items and tax {iv - v) 516.65 427.37
vii  Extraordinary items 38.03 -
- Unclaimed credit balances written back (Refer Note-39)
vill  Profit before tax {vi + vil ) 554.68 427.37
Ix Taxexpense:
- Curmrent tax expense 132.66 106.06
« Deferred tax 2.30 0.92
- Tax expense refating to prior years 8.67 (2.70)
X Profit after tax hut befere minority interast {vili - ix ) 411.05 323.10
xi  Minority interest 181.38 126.58
¥i  Prcfit after tax and minority interest (x - xi) 229.67 196.52
Eamings per share (Face vaiue of Rs, 10/~ each) (Refer Note 34)
- Basic ) 323.71 331.96
- Diluted ®) 323.71 331.96
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
(" As per aur saparate report of even date For and on hehalf of the Board of Ditectors )
For SCV & Co. LLP of Ludhiana Stock and Capitai Limited
Charterad Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000235N/N500088 Sdi- o
hT Sanjoov Gup
(Sartv Mot (Tt et e
Partner (DIN - 00434576) (OI - Ge412914)
M. No. DBGOG6
Sd/- Sd/-
II;Iaat:c:’e:s kuucz{;hggas {Vikas Batra) (Atu] Chikersai)
: 30.08. Direclor General Manager
\_ UPIN : 25086066BMKNQF4890 (DIN - 01964260} (PAN - AILPCA041L)

Ludh?_r:na Stock and Capital Limited "l 46 l“




. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST-MARCH 2025

(All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March, 2025 March, 2024

4. Cash Flow from Qperating Activity

Net Profit Before Tax, extraordinary items and minority interest 516,65 427.37
Non-Cash & Non-Operating adjustments for;
Depreciaton and amortisation expense 39.80 48.50
Prior Period Adjustment 2,05
Interest income (2,520.18) (2,074.58)
Finance cost 1,668.86 1,355.24
Sundry balances written offf (written back) (0.15) (0.15}
Provision far Doubtful recoverables 9.23
Bad Debts written off - 52.19
Profit on sale of asset {1.10) -
Operating Profit Before Working Capital changes {284.76) {190.43)

Changes in Working Capital:
Adjustment far (increase)/Decrease in operating assels:

Trade receivables {138.83) (16.29)

inventory 0.15 .03

Leans and Advances 40.26 (8.92)

Other assets 42.49 (44.13)
Adjustment for Increase/(Decrease) in operating Liabiiities:

Trade Payables 8.57 2,176.85

Long and Shart term Provisions 1.14 0.40

Other Liabiiities (2,599.25) 6,972.13
Cash Generated /(Used) from Operation (2,930.23) 8,889.65 |
Income tax paid (net) (61.72) {125.75)
Add; Extraordinary and Non Recurring items

- Unclaimed credit balances written back (Refer Note-39) 38.03 -
Net Cash generated /{used) from Operating Activity (A} (2,943.92) 8,763.90
2. Cash Flow From Investing Activity

Praceeds from sale of Praperty, Plant and Equipment 1.16 -

Interest received 2,891.97 1,339.17

Purchase of property, plant and equipment ‘ (22.23) (64.60)

Movement in bank deposits ather than cash and cash 1,813.53 (9,129.97)

equivaients
Net Cash generated /{used) from Investing Activity (B) 4,684.43 (7,855.40)
3. Cash Flow From Financing Activity

Proceeds from short term borrowings (274.10) 274.10

Finance Cost {1,852.64) (967.86)

Dividend Paid (Including dividend paid to minority} {23.00) {38.76})
Net Cash generated /{used) from Financing Activity {C) (2,145.?3} (732.52)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH. FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE: YEAR ENDED 31 ST MARCH 2025

(All amounts In T lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

4, Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A)+(B)+({C) (409.23) 175.98
5. Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 586.81 410.83
6. Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents (4)+(5) 177.57 586.81
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year comprises
{Refer note 17(a})
Cash on hand 1.00 0.59
Cheques deposited but not cleared - 10,90
Balances with Banks:

-In current accounts 176.57 575.31

177.57 586.81

(" As per our separate report of even date
For SCV & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000235N/N500089

(Sanjiv Mahan)
Partner
M. No. 086066
PLACE : LUDHIANA
DATED : 30-08-2025
\_ UDIN : 25086066BMKNQF4830

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

™

of Ludhiana Stock and Capltal Limited

Sd/-

(Tribhawan Singh Thapar)

Chairperson
(DIN - 00494576)

8df-
{Vikas Batra)
Director
{DIN - 01964260)

Sdr-
{Sanjeov Gupta)
Director
{DIN - 00412914)

Sdf-
(Atui Chikersal)
General Manager
{PAN - AILPC4041L) /
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* NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

c)

d)
0

a)
b)

a8

{m

a)

n}

L=}

i

b=

]

Basls of preparation of Financlal Statements

The consalidated financial statements of the cempany have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principlesin
India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the Accounting Standard({AS)specified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, The financial
statements have been prepared on accrual basis under histcrical cost convention.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consclldated financial statements, in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles, requires the
management to makes estimates and assumplions considered in the reported amounts of assets and [iabilites {including contingent
liabilities) as of the date of the financlal statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period,
Differance belween the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results materiaiize.

Revenua Recognition

a, Income from Transaclion Charges / Brokerage income Is recognized as per conlracted rates at the execution of transactions on behalf of
client on the rade date and is reflecled net of brokerage paid to authorized persons.

b. Revenue from depasltory services on account of annual maintenance charges s accounted for over the period of the performance
obligaticn and revenue in respect of zero holding deposlfory account is postponed in absence cf certalnty ofits ultimate collection.

¢. Revenue from depository services on account of fransaction charges is recognized at the pointin time when the performance obligation
Is satisfied.

d. Dividend from Investmentis recognized when the right to receive the paymentis established,

e. Fee from fralning and educational ceiiis recognized on the accrual basis depending upon the tenure of the training batch.

f. Insurance and other claims are recognized when no significant uncertainty exists with regard to the amount to be reailzed and the
ultimate cofiection thereof.

g. Maintenance chargesrecelved are recognized on accrual basis,

h. Otheroperating revenue such as fines and penaities, late pay-In charges etc. are recognized in the period in which llability is determined.
Property, Plantand Equipment & Intangible Assets
Property, Plantand Equipment
Property, Plantand Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreclation. The Cost of an Ttem of tangibie assets comprises:
its purchase price and any attributable expenditure(direclly orIndlrectiy) for bringlng the assetfo its working condition forits intended use.
Expanditure incurred on renovationfmodemizaticn of the existing property, plant and equipment is added to the book vaiue of these
assels where such renovation/mcdemization increases the future benofit from them beyond their previously assessed standard of
perfarmance.

‘The inital estimate of the costs of dismaniling and removing the item and restoring the site on which itis Iccated, the obligation for which
an entity incurs either when the item is acquired or beceuse of having used theitem during a particular period,

Subsequent expenditures refating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probabie that futurs economic benefits
associated with these will fiow to the Company and the cost of the ifem can be measured refiably. Repairs and mainfenance costs are
recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. The cost and reiated accumulated depreciation are eliminated
from the financlal statements upon sais or relirement of the asset and the resuitant gains or josses are recognized in the statement of
profitand ioss. Assels to be disposed off are reported at the iower of the camying value or the fair value less costto seil.

Intangible Assets

Intangibles assets are stated at costless accumuiated amount of amortization.

Depreciation

Depraclation is provided on Written Down Value methcd in accordance with and in the manner specified inSchedule [Tto the Companies
Act, 2013,

Depreciation on assels costing Rs, 5000/- or belowis charged @ 100% perannum on proporiionate basis.

Amortization

intangible assets are amorized on straightline method over theirestimated useful life.

Inventorles

Stock of Stationery is valued at cost. The costinrespect ofinventory is computed on FIFO basis.

Employee Benefits: ‘

Short Term Employee Benefits:

Short Term Employee Benefils are recognized as an expense on an undiscounted basis in the statement of profit and loss of the yearin
which the related service is rendered. This includes leave encashment which are expected to cocur within twelve menths after the end of
the period inwhich empioyee render the related services,

Post-Employment Benefits:

Dofined Contribution Plans:

Provident Fund, Empioyes State [nsurance Contributicn (ESIC) are defined Contiibuticn Plans:

The contribullon fo these scheme are made in accordance with the provisions of Employees Provident Fund Act and Miscallaneous
ProvisionsAct, 1952 and Employee State Insurance Corperation and is recognised as an expense Inthe statement of profit and foss.
Defined Benefit Plans:

Gratuity:

The Group Gratuity Scheme managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India is a defined benefit pian. The liability for gratuity Is provided
based on actuarial valuation camried out by an independent actuary as at the batance sheet date using projected unit credit method. The
present value of the company’s obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation at the year end and the falr vaius of plan assets is
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-‘-.-ORMING'P }RT OF CONS OLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

reduced from the gross obugaltons underthe gralultyscheme ta recognize the obligation on a netbasis.

iti) Actuarial GainorLoss:
Actuarial galn orlossis recognized in the statement of profit and less in the period in which they ocour.

) Investments.
Long term investments are carried at cost, less provisions, if any, for diminuticn in vaiue which is other than temporary. Current
investments are carried atlower of costand falrvalue,

j)  Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs that are direcily atiributable fo the acquisltion, constructicn or production of a quaiifying asset are capitalized as part of
the costofthe asset. Qualifying asset is one thal takes substantiai period of time to getready forits intended use. Other borrowing costs, if
any, arerecognized as an expense inthe period inwhich they areincurred.

k) ImpairmentofAssets
At each balance sheet an assessment is made whether any indication exists that an assets has been Impaired. If any such Indication
axists, an Impaimant loss i.e. the amount by which the camying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount is provided In the
books ofaccount,

I}  Accounting for Taxes onincome
Tha accounting treatment foiicwed for taxes on Income is to provide for Current Tex and Deferred Tax. Current Tax Is the aggregate
amount ofincome-tax determined to be payableIn respect of taxable income fer a period in accordance with the provisions of the Income
TaxAct, 1961.
Defemed tax is the tax effect of timing differences between taxable income and accounting Income that originate in one perled and are
capabie of reversal in one or mcre subsequent periods. Deferred tax s measured using tax rate and tax laws enacled or subsequently
enacted asatreporting date.

m) Earning per Share
Basic eaming per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributabie fo equity sharehclders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the pariod.
For the purpose of caiculating dlluted earning per share, the net profit or loss for the period atiributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period and welghted average number of equity shares which would be issued
onthe conversion of all dilutive potentlal equity shares into equity shares.

n) Leases
Company asalessor
Leasesinwhich the company does not transfer substantially ail the risks and rewards of ownership of an assetare classlfied as operating
leases. Rentalincome from operating lease Is recognized on a systematic basis overfhe ferm ofthe relevant [ease.

o)} Cashfiowstaternent
The cashflow staternent hasbeen prepared using the indirect method In aceardanco with the
Accounting Standard (AS)—3“Cash fiow stafemenfs” presciibed in Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021.

p} Cashandcashequivalent

Cash comprises of cash on hand and domand deposit with banks other than under lien and cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid
investment that are readily convertible into known amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of change in value.

q) Provisiens and Contingent Liabilltles

i}  Provislonis recognized {forliabilities that can be measured by using asubstantlal degree of estimation when:
(a)the company has a present obiigation becauss of a past event;
{b)a probable outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is expected to settie the obfigation; and
(c) the amount of the obligaticn can be reliably estimated

ii) Centingentliabllity is disciosed In casetherals:

(a} (i) possible obligatlon that arises from past events and existence of which will be confirmed oniy by the eccurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events notwholly within the controt of the enterprise; or

{fi} areliable estimate of the amount of the obligaticn cannot be made,
{b) apresentobligation arising from past events butis notrecognized
{i} whenltis notprababie thatan outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 1o setile the obfigation; or
{il} areliable estimate of the amount ofthe obligation cannot be made.
r) Oparating Cycles:
Based on the nature of activities of the company and the normal time between acquisilion of assets and their realization in cash or cash

aquivalents, the company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpese of classification of its assets and liabliities as
currentand noncurrent.

s}  MaterlalEvents:

Material ovents ocourring after the balance sheet date are taken into cognizance in accordance with the principles laid down in AS4
"Contingencies and evenls occurring after the balance sheet date”
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NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Share capital {Ali amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwlse stated)

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Number Amount Number Amount

Authorised ;

Equity shares of Rs, 10/~ each {par value) 5,000,000 £00.00 5,000,000 500.00

Total 5,000,000 500.00 5,000,000 500.00

Issued :

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 70,000 - 7.00 70,000 7.00

Total 70,000 7.00 70,000 7.00

Subscribed :

Equlty shares of Rs. 10/- sach 60,200 6.02 60,200 B.02
Total 60,200 5.02 60,200 6,02
Pald up :

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 60,200 6.02 60,200 6,02

Less ; Forfeited 1,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/-each 1,000 0.10 1,000 0.10

. 59,200 582 59,200 5.92

Add : Forfelted shares { Amaunt originally pald up) 0.10 0.10

Total 59,200 6.02 59,200 6.02

a Reconclllation of the number of shares at the beginning and at the end of the reporting perlod

Equity shares As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
At the beginning of tha reporting period 59,200 59,200
Add: Issued during the period - -
Qutstanding at the end of the reporting perlod 59,200 59,200

b. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The company has one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/-each. Each holder of equity shares is
entitied fo one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of directors Is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ansuing annual general meeting and entitliement to dividend to an equlty sharehoider shall arise after such approval exceptin case of
interim dividend.
In the event of liquidation of the company, the helders of equity shares will be enlltled to receive any of the remaining assets of the
campany, after distribution of all preferential amaunts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares heid by the
shareholder.
Dividend
The final dividend on shares Is recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the sharshelders and interim dividend are recorded as
aliabliity on date of declaration by the Company's Board of Direclors.
During the year ended 31st March 2025, the Company has incurred net cash outflow of 214.06 Lakhs towards the final dividend of
Z14.80 Lakhs for Financial Year 2023-24. The board of directors inthe meeting recomended a finai dividend of Rs. 25 per share for
thefinanolal year ended March 2025.
The payment In subject to the approval of shareholder in the AGM of the Company, if approved would resuit in net cash fiow of
Rs. 14,80 Lakhs
Company is reguired to pay dividend after deducting applicable withholding income tax

¢. Detalis of shares held by holding company fultimate holding company their subsidiaries and assoclates
‘There is na hoiding ¢r utimate holding company of the company.

d. Details ofshares held by each sharehoider holding morethan 5% shares:  Nil

e, Aggregate numberand class of shares alloted (a) as fully paid up pursuant to contract{s) without payment being receivedin
cash, (b) as fuily paid up by way of banus shares and (¢} aggregate number and class of shares bought back during the
period of five years Inmeadiately preceding the balance sheet date
Nao sharas have been allotted pursuant to contract{s) without payment being recelved In cash and also no shares have been allotted
a5 fuily paid-up by way of bonus shares and no shares have been bought back during the period of five years immedlately preceding
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F. Details of Shareholdings by the Promoters of the Company

(All amounts In ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwlse stated)

Name As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 % change

No of Shares % of Total shares No of Shares | % of Total shares
Sat Pal Kanwar 240 0.41% 240 0.41% 0.00%
Subash Chander Jain 120 0.20% 120 0.20% 0.00%
Total 360 0.61% 360 0.61% 0.00%
Name As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023 % change

No of Shares % of Total shares| No of Shares | % of Total shares
Sat Pal Kanwar 240 0.41% 240 0.41% 0.00%!
Subash Chander Jain 120 0.20% 120 0.20% 0.00%
Total 360 0.61% 360 0.61%) 0.00%

Note: Subscribers {0 memorandum of assoclatlon {(MOA) have been considered as promoters of the company.

3 Reserves and surpius
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Capital resorve ]
Balance as per last finanoial statements 1,539.67 1,539.67
1,538.67 1,538.67
Capital redemption reserve
Baiance as per last financial statements 7.90 7.90
7.90 7.90
Other reserves :
General reserve
Balance as per last financial statemenis 1,017.72 1,017.72
1,017.72 1,017.72
Share premium
Balance as per last financlal statements 28.62 28.62
28.62 28.62
Surpius i.e. balance In statement of profit and loss
Balance as per the {ast financial statements 428.49 262.16
Add : Profit for the year transferred from stafement 229.67 196.52
of profit and loss
Less : Appropriatlons :
Final Dividend on equity shares 14.80 30.19
Ciosing Balanoe 643.36 428.49
Totail 3,237.27 3,022.40
4 Deferred tax liahilities {(nat)
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Dreferred tax liabilities

Impact of difference between book balanoe and
tax balance of property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax Assots

Impact of expenditure charged to the statament of
profit and loss in the current year but aliowed for tax
purposes on payment basis

Net deferred tax liabilities

11.10 10.49
(0.18) (1.87)
10.92 8.62

Also refer Note no. 43

Ludhiana Stock and Capital Limited
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5 Other long-term liabllities

RT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{All amounts In ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Others !
Reatention money 34.35 34.35
Security from members* 155.62 153.12
Security Trading Right 77.00 56.00
266.97 243.47

* Security received fram membaers in respect of services rendered by ccmpany and for holding frading rights have

been treated as long term and shown accordingly.

6 Long-term provisions

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Leave encashment 4.74 -
4.74 -
7 _Short-term borrowlngs
Partlculars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Repayable on Demand
Overdraft facility from Bank - 274.10
{Secured agalnst Fixed deposit: Refer Note 28)
. - 274.10
8 Trade payables
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small - -
enterprise {(Refer note No. 41)
Total outstanding dues other than micro 113.28 104.71
enterprise and smail enterprise
113.28 104.71
Also refer ncte No. 45
9 Other current llabilities
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Depasitory charges received in advance 19.93 33.15
Unpaid dividend 8.22 8.63
Due fo Members 4.75 4,75
Security from others 19.69 9.13
Scrips held on behalf of Clients 160.54 168.94
Interest Payable on Client Margin 653.57 837.27
Security Depaosits from Authorised Person
- In Form of Funds* 273.06 253.06
Margin/ Deposits from ciients
-In ferm of funds 27,733.38 30,322.80
-In form of Fixed deposits 68.00 85.00
-Others (Related to deposifories) 1.00 1.00
Other payables
- Statutory remittances™ 101.88 135.39
- Expense payable 10.30 12.62
- Cheques issued but not presented 0.13 -
- Earnest money for membership 0.25 0.25
- Advances from members 4,89 6.11
- Security from members 23.87 19.32
- Other advances 0.05 -
- Other payabies 9.13 10.48
29,092.65 31,907.90

*Deposits received from authorised person is for base minimum capital requirement and trading rights.
*Staturory remittance inoludes contribution to provident fund, ESIC, tax deduoted at source, Goods and service tax etc.

10 _Short-term provisions

Partlculars As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Provision for employes banefits :
- Leave encashment

1.42

1.42
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1l PROPERTY, PLANTAND EQUIPMENT & INTAHGIBLE ASSETS

The Changa I tha camying value of Property, Flant and Equipment & Intanglble Assets for the year ended 31 Harch 2025 re as follows:

{All amounts in ¥ Lakhs Unlass othervise stated)

GROSS BLOCK ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
PARTIGULARS Balinceasat  Additions Disposal Adjustment  Bafnceasat | Balnceasat Depreclation! Eliminatedon  Adjustment  Balanceasal | Balanceasal  Balanceasal
1 April, 2024 3 March, 2025 | 4 Apel, 2024 amortisation disposal of 3 March, 2025 | 31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024
during the year assels
a) Property, Plant and Equipment
Freehold Land 65743 - . . 65743 - - - - - 65143 65743
Buldings 36041 . A - 35925 mau 43 10 445 B480 LA
Plant and Equiprrents i . - A mn 1160 - 31269 £4.62 622
Office Equipments na 1560 1317 8.5 M 1940 . .12 KIVRTS 67.58 7303
Fumifura and Fixties LY 653 . - B 252 113 - . 0N 8.05 kb
Vehicles 138 . - - 138 108 006 . . 144 024 030
Total {3) 130251 a3 116 1347 181044 90342 3640 L #1142 a1t BELT 823.39
b) Infanglble Assets
Compuer Software 101.26 . - 0126 9% 0 95.25 650 500
Total {t) 0126 10128 92.26 300 95.26 6.0 .00
Grand Tolal{a £ b) 13037 X} 116 1347 1.911.63] 935.38 130 100 #H.42 1.022.95[ B83.71 903.39
# Incluedes R, 8.10 Lakhs {Prexious year Rs. N0} towards reversal of excass provision of depreciation mada in earier yaar,
Tha Cbznga Inthe carrylng value of Praperty, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets for the year endsd 31 March 2024 are as follows:
GROSS BLOCK ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION HET BLOCK
PARTICULARS Balanceasat  Addillons Disposal Adjustment  Balanceasat | Balance asal Depreciation! Elfminatedon  Adjustment  Balanceasat | Balanceasat Balance as at
1 April, 2023 : M iarch, 204 | 1 Apiil, 2023 amoriisation disposal of 3 March, 2024 | 31 March, 2024 31 Karch, 2023
during the year 2ssels
a) Propzity, Plant and Equipment
Frecho!d Land 65743 - - - 65743 . - - - - 657.43 65743
Buidings 36041 - - - 36041 266,12 453 . - Mu 8047 g3.10
Plant and Equipments nu - - - mny 269 a7 - - J01.00 7622 80.38
(e Equipmenls 333 6391 - - mnn 2165 b} . dn4i9 Tn 3
Fumitvre and Fidwes B4 055 - - 8.6 ua 1 - 252 324 KKk
Vehes 14 044 - - 138 103 035 . 108 030 02
Tolal {3 11318 B4 180251 856,62 465 903.12 £99.39 831,29
b) Intangihle Assels
Computer Sofware 10426 - - 1.2 6926 M - 9226 800 izt
Tolal (b} 19126 1128 8.5 300 . . 9226 9.00 200
Grand Tolzl (3 +b) 18047 g4.60 . . 19377 | 945,88 450 - - 99538 | 90339 £93.29
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Ludhiana Stock and Capital Limited

Long-term loans and advances

{All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwlse stated)

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
{Unsecured considered good }
Security deposits 15.32 15.32
Loans and advances to employees 0.35 -
Advance income tax {Nat of provision for income tax of
Rs132.66 Lakhs (Pre\{.'icus Year Re.106.06 Lakhe) 152.61 204.83
Income tax refund receivable 52.64 -
Fair value of Plan assels 6.05 5.79
226.97 315.94
Other non-current assets
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Members securily :
- Held as fixed deposits* 147.63 145,13
- Held as members Investment 1044 5.90
Security received from others ( as fixed deposits ) 177 177
Security deposit to exchanges 319.95 321.95
Prepald Expenses 207 1.63
Nen current bank balances (Refer Note 17b) 195.00 45.00
Interest accruad on fixed deposits 25.22 51.71
702.08 573.09

* Heid under lien marked in favour of company

Current Investments

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 2024

Investments in bonds (quoted)-at cost or fair value whichever is lower

(Tax free bonds listed on stock exchange)

8.76% 199 (Previous Year- 199) bonds face value of Rs.
5,000/ each of National

Housing Bank

8.50% 150 (Previous Year- 150) bands face value of Rs.
1,000/~ each of National

Highway Autharity of India

7.35% 999 (Previous Year-999) bonds face value of Rs.
1,000/- each of National

Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development

7.38% 1,299 {Previous Year- 1299) bonds face value of Rs.
1,000/- each of Housing

Urban Development Cerporation

7.35% 999 {Previous Year- 999) bonds face value of Rs,
1,000/~ each of Indian

Railway Finance Corporation Limited

7.37% 300 (Previous Year- 300) bonds face value of Rs.
1,000/~ each of National

Highway Authority of india

7.43% 100 {Previous Year- 100) bonds face vaiue of Rs.
1,000/- each of National

Highway Autherity of india

7.35% 78 (Previous Year- 78) bonds face value of Rs. 1,000/~
each of Power

Finance Corporation

Aggregate amount of quoted Investments

Aggregate fair value of quoted investments

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Aggregate fair value of unquoted investments

Aggregate provision for diminutlen in value of other current
investments

The basis of market valuation of tax free bonds :

Fair value of investments in bonds Is determined by refersnce to quotes from the financial institutions, i.e net asset value {(NAV)

for Investments on bonds declared by stock exchange.

Il 55 Wl

11.88 11.88
1.74 1.74
10.60 10.60
13.83 13.83
10.69 10.59
3.18 3.18
1.06 1.06
0.83 0.83
53.71 53.M
53.71 53.71
56.21 58.08
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17(a)

17(b}
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{All amounts In ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise statad)
Inventories

Particulars * As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Inventories ( at cost or net reaiisable vaiue, whichever Is lower ):

Stationery stock - 0.15

- 0.15

Trade receivables

PARTICULARS As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
- Secured, considered good 281.10 126.57
- Unsegured, considered good 8.46 34.24
- considered doubtiul 9,62 0.40
299.18 160,21

'&:f)'fs: Allowances for doubffuf {9.62) 289.56 (0.40) 159,81

289.56 159.81

Also refer Note No. 44

Cash and cash equlvalents

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Cash and cash equivalents
a) Balances with banks

- In current accounts 176.57 575.31

k) Cash in hand 1.00 0.59
¢) Cheques deposited but not cleared - 10.90
177.57 586.81

Bank Bafances other than Cash and Cash Equivafents
(a) Earmarked balances with banks ;

- Dividend account 8.22 8.63
- Fixed deposits 30,244.52 32,134.08
(b) Other balances with banks:

- Deposit with maturity of not mere than twelve manths 276.46 350.02

- Deposits with maturity of more than twelve months 195.00 45,00
Less: Shown under other Non-Current assets* {195.00) {45.00)

(Refer note 13)

30,529.20 32,492.74

Note: The term deposits in Earmarked bank balances represent lien marked deposits against margin with major stock
exchanges, bank guarantee, bank overdraft limits (Refer Note 29).

Short-term loans and advances

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Ludhiana Stock and Capital Limited I“ A6 III

(Unsecured considered gocd )

Others:

Advances (other than advances to related parties) 0.16 0.50
Loan to employees 1.70 1.19
interest on loan to employees 0.06 -

1.92 1.69
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Ludhiana Stock and Capital Limited

.~ NOTES FORMING PART { )F CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in T Lakhs, unless otherwlse stated)

Other current assets
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Members deposits kept as margin® 68.00 85.00
Option margin with National Stock exchange 7.94 8.85
Additicnal survillance deposit with stock exchanges 0.67 63.94
Other receivables 13.15 41.10
Members security:
- Held as fixed deposits 1.33 1.33
Goods and Services Tax Recoverable 10,08 -
Prepaid expenses 56.84 48.77
Interest accrued on :
- Fixed deposits 1,147.07 1,493.21
- Security deposit: Punjab state power 0.84 _
Corporation Limited .
- Bonds 1.07 1,148.98 1.07 1,494.28
Scrips held on behalf of cllents 160.54 168.94
1,467.54 1,910.32
*Deposits of client(s) kept as lien with entity.
Revenue from operations
Particulars Year ended 31st Year anded 31st
March,2025 March,2024
Sale of services ;
- Brokerage Income (Net) 203.49 207.34
- Depository income 69.48 66.03
- Transaction charges 260.69 261.33
Qther operating revenues :
- Membership fee 2.93 2.96
- Training Fee received 2.88 1.91
- Transfer fee received 1.04 1.31
- Maintainence charges received 100.39 93.66
- Other Operating Income (Relating to Stock Exchanges) 89.60 70.90
730.50 70545
Income from investments and deposits
Year ended 31st Year ended 31ist
Particulars March,2025 March,2024
Interest received :
- From banks { Gross ) 2,515.54 2,070.77
~ From tax free bonds 3.78 3.76
- From others 0.86 0.05
2,520.18 2,074.58
Other income
. Year ended 31st Year ended 3{st
Particulars March,2025 Mareh,2024
Rent received 25.71 71.80
Sundry balances written back 0.15 0.15
Galn on sale of property plant & equipment 1.10 -
Miscellaneous income 10.59 10.78
37.55 82.83

il s7 1
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23

24

25

Employee henefifs expense

(All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwlse stated)

] Year ended 31st Year ended 31st
Particulars March,2025 March,2024
Salaries and wages 177.43 160.59
Contribution fo provident and other funds 17.92 23.22
Staff welfare expenses 5.75 §.57

201.10 189.38
Finance costs

. Year ended 31st Year ended 31st
Particulars March,2025 March,2024
Interest pald to banks 2,97 228
Bank Guarantee Charges 19.49 22.15
Interest paid to clients 1,665.97 1,362.97
Other Bank Charges 0.58 0.54

1,689.01 1,377.94
Other expenses
. Year ended 31st Year ended 31st
Particuiars March,2025 March,2024
Electricity and water 100.48 87.99
Rent 1.53 1.46
Repairs and maintenance - Plant and machinery 9.20 5.69
Repalrs and malntenance - Bulldings 24,18 3.46
Insurance 2.44 243
Rates and taxes 8.18 5.96
Advertlsement 0.82 1.48
Filling Fees 0.17 0.26
Office Expenses 4,05 4.89
Postage and Courler 3.27 3.19
Legal and professional 30.13 31.39
Travelling and conveyance 0.23 0.42
Printing and stationery 4,64 4.79
Auditors’ Remuneration {Refer note no. 36) 4,50 4,21
Internal Auditors' Remuneration :
- Audit fee 3.00 0.75
- Relmbursement of expenses 0.05 -
Meeting expenses 0.40 0.986
Directors' siting fee 0.13 0.21
Communication expenses 8.12 1017
Computer Maintance charges 83.96 93.67
Provislon for Doubtful recoverables 9.23 -
Cable TV Expenses 4,08 208
Festival Expenses 8.25 10.56
General Expenses 243 1.56
Annual maintenance and subscription charges pald to Stock
Exchange 67.43 5317
Security & housekeeping charges 57.14 £§3.30
Tumover fee pald to stock exchange 357.82 344,58
Depository and other charges 31.25 30.62
Bad debts - 52,19
Prior period adjustments 2.05 -
Miscellaneous expenses 11.51 7.25
841.67 818.68

Luqmana Stock and Capital Limited
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_ NOTES FORMING PART: OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts 1n ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

26. Consolldationinformation:

iy The consoiidated financial statements present the consolidated accounts of Ludhiana Stock and Capital Limited {“the
Company”) or (“the holding company'} with its subslidiary i.e., LSGC Securities Limited. {The hoiding company and its subsidiary
togetherreferred to as “the group™)
fiy Theholding company holds51.71% (Previous Year 51.71 %) share in the Subsidiary Company.
iy The detail ofreserves and surplus of minority interestis as following:
S. No. Particulars As at 31° March 2025 As at 31" March 2024
A, At the beginning of reporting period 1,119.33 909.75
B, Add: Share of profit of minarity 181.38 126.58
C. Less: Dividend paid to minority 777 6.99
D. Balance at the end of reporting period 1,282.94 1,119.33

27.

28.

29,

Ludhiana Stock and Capital Limited

Principies of Consoiidation

B

il

iii}
iv)

v)

[13]

)

iv)

v)

The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary are combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book
vaiues of Ttke Ttems of assets, iiabilities, Income, and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group
transactions in accordance with Accounting Standard {AS) 21 - "Consolidated Financial Statements”

The Consolidated financiai statements are prepared using uniform accounting poficies for the transactions and other events in
similar cireumstances and ara presented in the same manner as the Company's standalene financial statements except referred
inNote No. 37,

The difference betwaen the cost of invesiment and the parent's portion of equity in the subsidiary companies as on the date of the
holding-subsidiary relatienship coming into existe nce and atanytime thereafter is recognized as capitai reserve/goodwill,

Minority Interest's share of net profit of consoiidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against the income of the
group to arrive at the netincome attributabie to sharehoiders of the Company.

Minority interest’s share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the consolidated balance sheet
separate from liabilities and the equity of the Company's sharehoiders

Consolidated financial statements have been prepared after making the foilowing adjustments: -

The rent received by the holding company amounting to Rs. 42.40 (Lakhs) (previous year Rs, 38.48 Lakhs) —Exciuded from
consolidated statementof profitand loss.

The maintenance charges received by the hoiding ccmpany amounting to Rs.6.63 (Lakhs)(previous year Rs.6.73 Lakhs) fromits
subsidiary company Inciuded in “Revenue from Operations" in its standaione balance sheet has been eliminated on
consoiidation.

The interest received by the holding company amounting to Rs.48 Lakhs (previous year Rs,48 Lakhs) respectiveiy to ifs
subsidlary company included in “income from investments and deposits” in its standaione bajance shee! has been eliminated on
consoiidation.

‘The dividend received by the hoiding company amounling to Rs. B.32 Lakhs {pravious year Rs. 7.48 Lakhs) from its subsidiary
company included in "Income from Investments and Deposits” in its standalone balance shest has been eliminated on
consolidation.

The parent's portion of the final dividend amounting to Rs. 8.32 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 7.49 Lakhs) has been reduced from the
aggregate of the final dividend as refiected in the financial slatement of the subsidiary company, as a result of which the surplus
carriedta the censolidated balance sheetstands Increased to thatextent.

Contingent liabliitles In respect of(to the extent not providedfor):
Inrespect of holding company

Nil {Previous year Nil)

{Mo ocutflowis expecied in view of the history reiafing to these items)
In respect of Subsidiary Company:

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts - 1249
Guarantees (Issued by bank in favor of National Stock 2,000 2,000
Exchange)

a) Fixed Deposits of ¥951.00 Lakhs (Prev. Year ¥854.41 Lakhs) have been pledged with HDFC Bank to secure overdraft facilities.

b)

c)

The credit faciilty avaiied Is repayable on demand. Interest is payable at the rate of 1% pius the respactive rate on the Fixed
deposits.

Company has pledged fixed deposits of Rs. 1000 Lakhs (Prev. Year 1000 Lakhs) with HDFC {for obtaining a bank guarantee
amounting to Rs, 2000 Lakhs (Prev. YearRs. 2000 Lakhs) in favorof Mational Stock Exchange Limited.

Fixed deposits of Rs. ¥28279.77 Lakhs (Prev. Year ¥30257.92 Lakhs) Is under iien, marked In faver of National Stock Exchange

Il 5o i
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' NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts In ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

of india Limited and Fixed deposits of Rs. ¥13.75 Lakhs/- (Prev. Year ¥13.75 Lakhs/-) is under iien, marked in favor of Bombay
Stock Exchange Limited for Base Minimum/Additional Capital. These fixed deposits are shown under'Otherbank balances'.

d) Fixeddeposits ofRs. T Nii (F‘reviousYear? 8.001acs)is underiien marked in favar of National Stock Exchange of india Limited as
Membership Security for 'Currency derivative’ Seament.

The intangible assels which comprises of software and licenses have been amortized @20% on straight line basis as the usefui iife
thereof has been estimated to ba notmore than five years.

The Trade receivables relating to the Clients Trading in Securities through the Company are secured against their securitiss lying with
the Company and under the Clause 11 of the Tripartite Agreement between LSC Securifies Limited (*the subsidiary”) and its Sub-
Brokers and Clients.

Related Party Disclosure:
iy  Disciosure of Related Parties and relation between ihe parties.
Key Management Personnei
Mr. Sumit Maihofra Company Secretary
Mr. Ved Parkash Gaur Director
i}y Thefoliowing transactions were carried outwith related parties in the ordinary course of business:

Particulars Key Management Personnel (KMP)
2024-25 2023-24
Payment to KMP as remuneration (Mr. Sumit Malhotra) : 7.97 6.84
Directors Sitting Fees (Mr. Ved Parkash Gaur} 0.13 0.21
iii) Detaills of Qutstanding Balances asatthe end of year

Particulars Balance as on 31 Balance as on 315 |
March 2025 March 2024

Sumit Malhotra-Company Secretary 0.24 0.24

({Ex-gratia Payable}

fii) Therelated parly reiationshipis as identified by the company and relied upon by the auditors

In accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS-28) on "Impairment of Assets” the company has assessed as on balance sheet date,
whether there are any indications (as llsied in paragraphs 8 te 10 of the standard) with regards to the impairment of any of the assels.
Based on such assessment it has been ascertained that no potentiai loss is present and therefore, formai estimate of recoverable
amount has not been made. Accordingiy, no impairmentloss has been provided in the books of account.

Earnings PerShare:

The caiculation of eamings per share (EPS) as disclosed has been made in accordance Acoounting Standard (AS) 20 on "Eamings
Per Share” notified by Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021:

e Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
1. Average Number of Equify Shares of 10/- each {no.} 59,200 £9,200
2, Net Profit (after tax and minority interest) (Rs in lacs) 229.67 196.52
3. | Extraordinary items(Rs in lacs} 38.03 0

?R?st ::lr?afgs()aﬂertax and minority interest) attributable to equity sharehclders 191.64 196.52
5. Earnings per share (Basic){Rs) (4/1) 323.71 331.86
6. Eamings per share {Diluted)(Rs} (4/1) 323,71 331.96
7. Nominal Value of per Equity Share (Rs.) 10/- 10/-

356. The Holding company is presently performing functions of a hoiding company by coordinating the policy and administration of existing

Ludhiana Stock and Capital Limited Ill 80 II]

subsidiary apart from providing infrastructure and related services to ifs members and contributing fo the society by providing surmmer
{raining to the students of various streams.

36. Payment to Auditors:

Particulars Year ended 31st March 2025 | Year ended31st March 2024
Audit Fee 3.50 275
Tax Audit Fea 0.80 0.30
in other capacity 0.10 0.95
Reimbursement of Expenses 0.15 0.21




. NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘ '(AII amuu.nts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

37. Theaccounting pclicy in respect of Provision for Leave with encashment:
i} Inrespectofholdingcempany:
The hoiding company has made provisions for the ieave eamed by employees during the year on accrual basis.
ii) inRespectof Subsidiary Company:

The Subsidlary company has policy of accumulation of earned leaves and has made provision at the year end based on
independent actuarial valuation.

38. “"Cumentinvestment is an Investment that is by its nature readily reaiizable and is intended to be held for not more than one year from
the date on which investmentis mads”.

The invesiments shown under the head Current Investments are held for more than one year, which are to be shown as Non-Current
Investments but as per decision taken by the management of the company these are intended to be held for sale as and when the
company needs fund, therefore shown under head “Current Investments,”

39. a)in case of defaviters and suspended members the company got the scrips transferred in its name and accounting entries for such
scrips are made in respect of defaulting members and suspended members by crediting “Member's security {in kind) account” and
debiting “Member's invesiment aceount”. The scrips in such cases have been valued at the quoted price prevailing on the day of
tendering of transfer deeds.

b} The securities so transferred by the company in its name pertaining to defauiting or suspended members remalned unclaimed for a
long period and {o the best efforis of the company, no member came forward to claim these securities desplte advertisement made by
{he company in various newspapers.

The company has disposed of these unclaimed securities in a recognized stock exchange and has written back a sum of Rs. 38.03
{iacs) as unclaimed balances and such Is shown under the head “exiracrdinary items” in the Statement of Profit and Loss in view of its
unusual and infrequentnature.

40, Employes Benefits: The summarized position of post-empioyment benefits and iong-term employee benefits recognized in the
statement of profit and loss and baiance sheet as required in accordance with Accounting Standard — 15 (Employee Benefits} are
asunder:-

1} Defined Gontribution Pian:

Parficulars Year ended 31°March, 2025 | _ Year ended 31" March, 2024
1) Contribution to Provident Fund 14.62 13.74
i) Conlribution to Employees Slate [nsurance 1.98 213

i) Defined Benefits Pian:

a) Gratulty: The amount of gratuily has been computed based an employees' safary and year of employment with the company.
Graluity has been accrued based on actuarial valuation as at the baiance sheet date, carried outby an independentactuary,

1} Changein Presentvaiue of Obligation

Particulars Year ended 31" March, 2025 Year ended 31°' Warch ,2024
a. Present Value of Obllgation at the beginning of year 55.54 54.31
b. Interest cost 4.02 4.03
¢. Cument service cost 4.25 4.12
d. Benefits paid (5.73) {2.43)
e. Actuarial {gain) / loss 1.69 2.51
f. Present Value of Obligation at the end of the year 50.77 55.54

ll} Expenses recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss Alc

Particulars Year ended 31" March, 2025 | Year ended 31" March, 2024
a, Cumrent Service Cost 4.25 4.12
b. Interest Cost 4.02 4.03
c. Expecied relurn on plan asset {4.11) (4.31)
d. Net actuarial (gain}loss recognized in the year 1.08 234
e. Expenses recognized in the Profit & Loss 5.25 6.18

ity Amount recognized in Baiance Sheet

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

a. Present value of obligations as at the close of £9.78 65.54
the year

b. Fair Value of Pian Assets as at the close of 65.83 61.33
the year

c. Net Liability recognized in balance sheet (6.05) {5.79)

Ludhiana Stock and Capital Limited
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 NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A o S . (All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(iv) Change Inthe FairValue of Pian Assets

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
a. Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beg  inning of 61.33 59.54
the year
b. Expected Retun of Plan Assets 4.1 4.31
c. Contributions 5.53 6.73
d. Benefits paid (5.73) (9.43)
&. Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Plan Assels 0.60 0.17
f. Fair Value of Plan Assels at the end of the year 65.83 61.33

() Otheriong term empioyee benefits :
The detaii of leave encashment is as foliowing:

Particulars Year ended 31st | Year ended 31st
March 2025 March 2024
Expenses recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss 4.87 4,80
Obligation at the end of the year 6.17 5.03
41. Disclosures required under Section 22 of The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises DeveiopmentAct, 2006.
The detalls relating to micro, smaii and medium enterprises are as hereunder:
A Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31"March,2025 31"March,2024

(a) Amount remaining unpaid fo suppliers as at the end of vear.
- Princlpal amount - -
- Interest due thereon - -
(b} The amount of interest pald by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the - -
Miero, Small and Medium Enterprises Deveiopment Act, 2008 (27 of 2008),
along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appainted day during each accounting year
(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making - -
payment {which has been paid but beyand the appointed day during the year)
but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enferprises Development Act, 2006
(d) Interest accrued and remalning unpaid at the end of the year
- Interest accrued during the year - -
- Interest remaining unpaid as at the end of the vear - -
{e} The amount of further interest remaining due an  d payable even in the -
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actuaiiy -
paid to the smali enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006,

DBues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified based on the
information collected by the management. This has been reiied upon by the auditors.

42, Figures pertaining to the subsidiary company has been regroupedirecast, wheraver necessary tobring these in line with the
parent company's financiai statements.
43, The detail of deferred lax liabilitles and assets as per Accounting Standard —AS 22 on "Accounting for  Taxes on income" as at

the end of eachreporting pericd isas under.

Nattre of Timing Difference Deferred Tax Liability Movement Deferred Tax
(Assets) as on during the year Liability (Assets) as
01.04.2024 on 31.03.2025
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Related to Preperty plant and 10.49 0.61 11.10
equipment
Less: Deferred Tax Assets
Impact of expenditure allowabie for tax (1.87) 1.69 (0.18)-
purposes cn payment basis,
Deferred tax Liability/Asset (Nef) 8.62 2.30 10.92

Ludhiana Stock and Capital Limited "I 62 lll




NOTES FORMING PART OF GONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

44, Tradereceivables Ageing schedule
() Ason3i1"March, 2025

Particulars Outstanding for following period from due date of payments
Less than 6 6 Months | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
Months -1 Year Years
() Undisputed Trade Receivables- 268.03 5.07 2.76 0.01 13.68 239.56
Considered Good .
(Il Undisputed Trade Receivables-

Considered doubtful - B 0.46 8.08 1.08 9.62
{ili) Disputed Trade Receivables- . _

Considered Good - B B -
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- . . _ _ _

Conslidered doubtiul ~
Total (A) 268.02 5.07 3.22 8.08 14,77 200.17
Allowance for Doubtful Debts (B) - - 0.46 8.08 1.08 9.62
Total (A-B) 268.02 5.07 2.76 0.01 13.69 289.56

(I Ason 31" March, 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following pericd from due date of payments
Lessthan6 | 6Monthsto | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years | More than Total
Months 1 Year 3 Years
(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables - 113.56 7.54 16.41 6.71 1658 | 159,81

Considered Good )l
{I) Undisputed Trade Receivables- 3 i . .

Considered doubiful 040 040
(i) Disputed Trade Receivables -Considered . N . . . .

Good
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- Considered § } ) ) . .

doubtful
Total (A) 113.56 7.54 16.41 6.71 1599 | 160.24
Allowanee for doubtiul debis (B) - - - - (0.40) {0.40)
Total (A-B} 113.56 7.54 16.41 6.71 15,59 | 159.81
45, Ageing schedule of Trade Payabies from due date of payment

(i) As at 31" March, 2025

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Not Due Less than 1 12 Years | 2-3 Years | More Than | Total
Year 3 Years

(i) MSME - - - - - -
(Il) Others 8.55 68.03 - - 370 | 80.28
{iii} Disputed Dues-MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues-Others - - - - = -
(v) Unbilled Dues 33.00 33.00
Total 41.55 68.03 - - 3.70 | 113.28

Ludhiana Stock and Capital Limited
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- NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(U]

{All amounts in ¥ Lakhs, unless otharwise stated)
As on 31" March, 2024

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
NotDue | Lessthan1 | 1-2 Years | 2-3Years | More Than 3 Total
Year Years

{i MEME - - - - - -
(1) Others 5.82 57.01 - 6.94 - 69.77
(iit) Disputed Dues-MSME - - - - - -
{iv) Dispuled Dues-Others - - - - - -
(V) Unbilled Dues 34.93 - - - - 34.93
Total 40,75 57.01 - 6.94 - 104.71

48, The Grbup did not have anylong-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there ware any material foraseeablelcsses.

47.

Inrespect of Holding Company:

As per Section 124 {8) of the Companles Act, 2013 {Act) provides that all shares in respect of which dividend has net been paid or clalmed
for 7 censecutive years or mere shall be transferred to IEPF, The company has deposited unclalmed dividend of Financial Year 2017-18
during the year amounting to Rs. 0.98 Lakhs to the Investor Educations and Protection Fund in accordance with the relevant provislans of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereon.

in respact of Subsidiary Company:

As per Sectien 124 {6) of the Companies Act, 2013 {Act) provides that all shares In respect of which dividend has not heen paid or claimed
for 7 consecutive years or more shalf be fransferred to IEPF. The company has deposited unclalmed dividend of Financial Year 2015-17
during the year amounting to Rs. 0.07 Lakhs to the investor Educations and Protection Fund in accordance with the refovant provisions of
the Companies Act, 201 3 and Rules made thergon.

Furthar, Rs, 0.15 Lakhs Is required to be credited to Investors’ Education and Protection Fund but not credited within the time limits as

prescribed under Companies Act, 2013 due to technical reasons beyend the control of subsidiary com pany.

48. KeyFinancial Ratios

Q,
5. No| Particulars Numerator Dencminator 31;3;;6“ 31;3;?“ Var]fn ce Remarks
1 | Curment Ratio | Current Assels Current Lighilities 1.11 1.09 2.13%
2 | Debtservice | NetProfit after Interest + principal N.A N.A N.A N.A
coverage ratio | taxes + repayments
Depreclation
+ interest
3 | Deht equity QOutstanding shareholders’ N.A N.A N.A N.A
ratio borrowings equity
4 | Retumon Net profit after Average 7.32% 3.20% 128.64% | Increase in Ratio is due to
equity ratio taxes sharehoiders® increase in eamings after tax
equity due to higher income from
deposits.
5§ | Inventory Costofgoods sold | Average inventory N.A N.A N.A
furnover ratio
6 | Trade Net credit sales Average accounis 3.37 2.16 §5,83% | Increase in Ratio is due to
receivabie recelvabie Increase In trade recelvable
{umover ratio of the subsidiary company
7 | Trade Net credit purchase | Average Payables 0.80 0.82 «1.00%
payables
tumover ratio
8 | Net capital Net sales working capital 0.24 1.1 ~78.03% | Declinein Ratiois due to
turnover ratio decrease in average working
capilal employed of
subsidiary company.
9 | Net profit Net profit Net sales 31.44% | 15.01% 109.40% | increase in ratio is dus to
ratlo increase in net profit during
the vear.
10 | Return Eamings before Tangible net worth 65.77% 54.01% 21.77%
on capital intarest & taxes + total debt +
empioyed Deferred
tax ligbility
11 | Refurn on Net Profit after Net block of PPE 25.84% 10.28% | 151.29% [ Increase in Ratlois due to
investment taxes increase in eamings after tax.

Ludhiana Stock and Capital Limited
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_-NOTES FORMING PART.OF

49,

50,

51.

52.
§3.

54,

§5.
36.

§8.

60.

61.
62. The provisionsof Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 with regard to corporate soclal responsibility are not applicable te group.
63.

64. Flgures In brackets Indicate deductions. The amount has been rounded offto the nearest [akhs and two decimals thereof.

ONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Events occurring afterthe baiance sheetdate

1) The Holding Company in ils meeting held on 30.08.2025 deciared dividend of Rs. 25/- per equity share of Rs. 10/- for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2025 subject ta the approval of sharehelders at the ensuing Annuai General Meeting. If appraved, the final dividend will
resuitin cash ocutflow of Rs.14.80 (jacs) /-

2) The Subsldiary Company has In its meeting held on 29.08.2025 declared dividend of ¥ 0.40 per share or the year ended 31st March, 2025
subject to the approval of sharehalders at the ensulng General Meeting. If approved, the final dividend will result in cash outflow of ¥
25.76{lacs}/-
The Group is a Smail and Med|um Sized Company {SMC) as defined in the Genetai Instructions in respact of Accounting Standards notifted
under the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingiy, the companles have complied with the Accounting Standards, as applicable to a Small and
Medium sized cempany.
The Information required by the paragraph 5 of general instructions for praparation of the statement of profit and loss as per Schedute Ill of
the CompaniesAct, 2013 s notapplicable to the Holding company and subsidiary company.
Pravious year's figures have been regroupedfrestated whearaever necessary to ocnfirm to its classification of the currentyear.
The Group does not have any such transactions which is notrecorded in the baoks of account that has been sumrendered or disclosed as
Income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survay or any other relevant provisions
ofthe Income Tax Act, 1961).

{i) Therais no Immovabla Property, Title Dead ofthose are not held in the name of the Company.

{il) No revaluaticn of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assels has been carried cut during the year.
The Group has nottraded orinvested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency, during the financlal year ended 31stMarch, 2025.
The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has beeninitiated or pending against the company for holding any
benami property underthe Benami Transactions (Prohibiticn) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988},
The Group does not have any transacticns with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
CompanlesAct, 1956.
There are noloans or advances n [oans are granted ta Promoters, Directors, KMPs and theirrelated  parties (as defined under Companies
Act, 2013), either severally orjointly with any otherperson, thatare:

(a) Repayableondemand;or
(b) Withcut specifying anyterms or period of repayment
59.

The Group has net advanced or loaned or invested funds (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s} or entity(ies), Inciuding forelgn enfities {"intermediaries™) with the undetstanding
{(whether recarded in writing or otherwise} that the Intermediary shall.

(2) directiy or indirectly lend or Invest In other person or entities identified In any manner whalsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

{b) provide any guarantoe, security orthe iike to oron behaif of the Ultimate Beneficlaries.

The Group has notreceived any fund from any person or entity, Including foraign entities (Funding pariies) with the understanding (whether
recarded inwriting orotherwise) that the company shall.

{a) directly or indirectly fend or Invest In other person or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ot on behalf of the funding party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b)provide any guarantes, security or the like on bahalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.
The Group dees not have any charge or satisfacticn which s yetto be registered with ROC beycnd the statutory period.

Figuras in brackets Indicate daductions. The amount has been rounded offto the nearest Rtipees.

.

(" As per our separate report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Diractors )

For SCV & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 000235N/N500089

(Sanjlv Mohan)
Partner
M. No. 086066

PLACE : LUDHIANA
DATED : 30-08-2025
UDIN : 25086066BMKNQF4890

of Ludhiana Stoek and Capltal Limited

Sd/-
{Tribhawan Singh Thapar)
Chairperson
{DIN - 00494576)

Sd/-
{Vikas Batra)
Director
(DIN - 01964260)

Sd/-
{Sanjeev Gupta)
Director
(DIN - 00412914)

Sd/-
{Atul Chikersal)
General Manager
{PAN - AILPC4041L) /
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3“’5%\ LUDHIANA STOCK AND CAPITAL LIMITED

CiN : UB7120PB1281PLC004696

4 Regd Office: Feroze Gandhi Market, Ludhiana-141001

Form No. MGT-11
. PROXY FORM
TPursuant to section 105(6) of the Companles Act, 2013 and rute 19(3) of the Companles (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CiN 1 UB7120PB1981PLCO04696
Name of the Company : LUDHIANA STOCK AND CAPITALLIMITED
Reglstered office : Feroze Gandhi Market, Ludhiana

MName of the member (s):
Registered address:

E-mail ID:: .

Folio No./ Client ID:
DP ID:
1iWe, being the member {s) of shares of the above named company, hereby appoint:

1) Namei...ccoueene et esharneenaearerr et aarareenreanann Address: ....... ratessresieressranasearasrasertnn eeenisesaatrssaransasanarrnnraree
E-t1all D eeevemeneeremenerenerrmnmmmsstsssnssnsncssnnsnnsrane SIGNAIUTE: vevereeresrsrresssssssermesiisranrersnnsares rranraaass , oF falling him/her

2) NaMB:eervrsrsssssenresmserssnsssstsssenassrenress ieseeraeses ATUTESS: wevirireersemminsrisentearersmsstariosssssrsnsensenstarnassissnansssssrainesnssns
E-mail 1D:........ emvrraeeenaiisiassrssasnnarsaeeaT s SIgNAtUIE: covvviisisstsrasrsrsis s rarersrresssssssasnsssnsa , or falling himfher

3) NAME. coeeriiicinrreessserera st sae e e e AdAress! coccvrrerenrrsrisirsssisstecrnnrsssesenses ferreeeiaeneeneserenarntntensetornnanns
E-mall ID:.ccvieniiiiiemeienienins rnetarsstatasiassnsnntnres SIINBIUT 1ecririsrerorssrnneriesrssassrsrnssesnssnssnserararses bt bsbisssssssstsmmimassssasssinen

as myfour proxy to attend and vate {on a peii) for mefus and on my/our behalf at the 43*Annual General Meeting of the Ccmpany, to be held on the
307 day of September, 2025 (Tuesday) 04:15 p.m. at the Ragistered Qffice of the Ccmpany at 1% Floor, LSE Building, Feroze Gandhi Market,
Ludhiana-141001, and at any adjournmentthereofin respactof such resolutions as are Indicated below:

Reasolution Nos.

;I etvesessssssrermrenetseisasessaanarar eteseisasssamntinss e ass reranrae Affix
Revanue
B rierereeisenbaresas s sra st bae et A rEe SR eSS IR R R en bh S sA e aRe s m s e e e buTan e ne Stamp

Signature of Sharshoider Signed this day of 2025

Signature of First Proxy holder Slgnature of Second Proxy holder Signatura of Third Proxy holder

Notes:

1. This form of proxy in order to ba effectiva should be duly completed and depcsited at the Registered Office of the Company, not iess than
48 hours before the commencement of the Meefing.

2. Aproxy need not be a member of the Company.

3. Aperson can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fitty and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the tofal share
capital of the Company camying veting rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total shara capital of the Company carying voting
rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or sharehoider.

4, Appolinting a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in persen, if he/she sowishes.
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CIN : U67120PB1981PLC004636
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

(PLEASE BRING THIS AGM ATTENDANGE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANGCE OF THE MEETING HALL)

Narme of first name Sharehoider (in block letters) :
Name of Joint Shareholder(s), if any :

Registered Address :

Registered Follo No. /DP 1d / Cllent 1d :

No. of Equity Share(s) :

Name of the Proxy/Representative(s), if any :

1 heraby record my presence at the 43" Annuat General Meeting of the Company, being held on 30" day of September, 2025 (T uesday)

at 04:15 p.m. at 1° Fleer, LSE Buillding, Feroze Gandhi Market, Ludhiana-141001.

Member's/Proxy's Signature

Member's/Proxy's name in Block Letfers

Note: Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the hall




INFORMATION FROM SHAREHOLER FOR UPDATION IN RECORDS

Date:

Name of Shareholder

FatherfHusband Name

Date of Birth

Address Office

Address Residence

Contact Number

Email Id

Pan Card Number

Aadhaar Number

Qualification

No. of Shares

Folio Number

DP ID & Client 1D

Bank Account Number

IFSC Code

Note: Please Provide Self attested Copies Of Pan & Aadhaar Card Herewith.




